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FASTTRACK HOUSING FINANCE LIMITED
(formerly known as Fasttrack Housing Finance private Limited)

To,

The Members
Fasttrack Housing Finance Limited

It is our pleasure to present the Seventeenth (17rh) Directors, Report of your Company (,,Fasttrack Houstng FinanceLlmited" or "the company") on the buJiness and operations of ihe company along with the statement of AuditedAccounts for the financial year ended 3I'r March,2022.

l. Flnanclal Summarv or Hlshliqhts -

DIRECTORS' REPORT

tn lakhs
Particulars 202t-2022 2020-2021

Total lncome 1,s90 60 1,,867.67

Total Expenses 1,,61,6.45 1,685.06
Profit Before Tax (2s.8s) 182.55
Provision for tax

- Current tax 71.00 | 42.93
- Deferred tax {81.7s ) (1.14)

frofit /Loss for the year (rs.13) L40,7 6

The state of Company's affairs - Standalone

The total income during the year 202!-2022 stood at Rs. 1,590.60 lakhs as against Rs. 1,867.61 lakhs during the
previous year. The Company has incurred a loss before tax during the year 202l-2022 of Rs.25.8S lakhs as compared
to a profit of Rs. 182.55 lakhs in the previous year. The loss after tax during the year 202!-2022 stood at Rs. 1s.13
lakhs as against a profit of Rs. 140.76 lakhs in the previous year.

Prudential Norms for Houslns Finance Comoanles

The RBI governs the HFcs and issues Suidelines on income recognition, asset classifications, accounting for
investments, provisions of Loan to value (1ry) ratio, provisioning for bad and doubtful debts, capital adequacy,
accounting and disclosure policies, fair practice code and asset liability management. The Company is in compliance
with applicable prudential norms and guidelines.

SoecialReserve

As per Section 29C of the National Housing Bank Act, 1987, the Company is required to transfer at least 20% of its net
profits every year to a reserve before any dividend is declared. During the period under review, your Company has
transferred Rs. 53.18 lakhs to Special Reserve. Apart from special reserve, the company has not transferred any
amount to the other Reserves for the year ended March 37,2022.

Divldend:

ln view of the losses incurred by the Company, the Board of Directors does not recommend any dividend on equity
shares for the year.

Subsldlarv, Joint Ventures or Associate:

Your Company does not have any Subsidiary, Jolnt Ventures or Associate company.

3.

4.

6.
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Public Deposits:

Your company is registered with the RBI as a Non-Deposit taking Housing Finance company. During the year under
review, the company has not accepted any deposits from the public and resolution in this regard wis passed by the
Board of Directors of the Company. Hence, disclosirres as required under Regulation 44 of Master Direction - Non-
Banking Financial company - Housing Finance company (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2021 (RBl Master Directions for
HFCs) is not applicable for the Fy 202L-22.

ChanEe in the nature of business:

There has been no change in the nature of business of your Company during Fy 2021_2022.

lssue of Capital

During the year under review, the Company has not issued any equity shares with or without differential rights or
sweat equity shares or stock options and has not made any provision of money for purchase of its own shares by
employees or by trustees for the benefit of employees.

Share Caoital

The Authorised Share Capital of the Company is Rs. 75,OO,OOO/- (Rupees Seventy Five Lakhs only) divided into
7,50,000 (Seven Lakh Fifty Thousand) equity shares of Rs. 10 (Rupees Ten) each.

The paid up share capital of the Company is Rs. 62,62,4901- (Rupees: Sixty Two Lakhs Sixty Two Thousand Four
Hundred Ninety Only) divided in to 6,26,249 shares of Rs. 10 each fully paid.

11. Non-convertible Debentures

As per RBI Circular No. RBtl2020-21/73 DOR.FIN.HFC.CC.No .720/03.10.136/2020-21 dated 17th February, 2021, the
Company has not issued any non-convertible debentures.

12, Directors and Kev Manaperial Personnel:

Constitution of the Board and changes during the year;

Sr.

No.
Name Designation DIN Date of

appointment
Date of

Resignation

1. Mr. sudhir Valia Non Executive Director 00005561 70/06/2014

2. Mr. Paras Mehta Non Executive 0irector 00007639 27 /08/2027

3. Ms. Shradha Panchamia Non Executive Director 00623897 14/04/2016

4. Mr. Mahendra Mahajan* Non Executive Director 08168921 os/12/2019 20112/2027

5. Mr. Harshal Bhuta** Additional lndependent
Director

0731,9547 22/7212021

6 Mr. Mukesh unadkat** Additional lndependent
Director

01340845 22/12/202!

Mr. Paras Mehta, Director of the Company retires by rotation and being eligible offers himself for re-appointment. A

resolution seeking shareholders' approval for his re-appointment along with other required details forms part of the

Notice.

*Mr. Mahendra Mahajan resigned as a Non Executive Director of the Company with effect from the closing hours of

20'h December, 2021. The Board of Directors wish to place on record the valuable contribution by Mr. Mahendra

Mahajan during his tenure as a Director of the Company.

**Mr. Harshal Bhuta and Mr. Mukesh Unadkat were appointed as Additional lndependent Directors on 22nd

December, 2021. As per the terms of section 161 of the Companies Act, 2013, l\y'r. Harshal thuta and Mr. Mu

Unadkat can hold office up to this annual general meeting. Necessary proposal for appointment of the

7.

9.
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Director has been included in the notice convening the Annual General Meeting and the resolution is recommended
for member's approval.

The company was not required to appoint any Key managerial personnel as per companies Act, 20i.3.

13. Remuneration to Directors

During the year under review, the Company has not paid any remuneration to any Non-Executive Directors of the
Company.

14. Manalement Discussion and Analvsls

The report has a detailed chapter on Management Discussion and Analysis. lt forms part of the report and marked as
Annexure l.

15. Number of Board and General Meetlnrs

During the year under review ten (10) meetings of the Board of Directors were held on 19'h April, 2O2l,26ti May,
2021, 15th )une,2021-,03'd August, 2021., o3'd september, 2021, 1't November, 2O?1,2"d December, 2021,22;;
December, 2021, 08!h January, 2022 and o8th Febru ary,2022.

The intervening 8ap between two meetings was within the period prescribed under the Companies Act, 2013.

Sr.

No.
Name of the Director Designation No. of meetings

entitled to attend
No. of meetings

attended
1. Mr. Sudhir Valia Non Executive Director 10 10

2. Mr. Paras Mehta Non Executive Director 5 5

3. Ms. Shradha Panchamia Non Executive Director 10 10

4. Mr. Mahendra Mahajan Non Executive Director 7 7

5. Mr. Harshal Bhuta Additional lndependent
Director

2 2

5. Mr. Mukesh Unadkat Additional lndependent
Director

2 2

Annual General Meeting of the Members of the Company was convened on 30'h September, 2o2l for the financial
year 2020-2021.

No Extra-Ordinary General Meeting of the members was convened during the F .y. 2021-2022.

16. A statement on declaration siven bv independent directors:

Pursuant to Section 149(7) of the Act, the lndependent Directors have provided a declaration to the Board of Directors

that they meet the criteria of lndependence as prescribed in the Act and are not aware of any situation which exists or
may be reasonably anticipated that could impair or impact their ability to discharge duties as an lndependent Director

with an objective independent judgement and without any external influence.

The Board is of the opinion that the lndependent Directors of the Company hold highest standards of integrity and

possess requisite expertise and experience (including the proficiency) required to fulfill their duties as lndependent

Directors.

Further, in terms of Section 150 of the Act read with Rule 6 of the Companies (Appointment and Qualification of

Directors) Rules, 2014, as amended by Ministry of Corporate Affairs ('MCA'), all the lndependent Directors have

confirmed that they have registered themselves with databank maintained bY The lndian lnstitute of Corporate Affairs

{'llCA'). These declarations/confirmations have been placed before the Board
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meetings were held by the company on 15'h.lune, 2021, 03'd

2021and 08'h February, 2022.

17. Committees :

> Audit Committee under NHB Guidelines

During the year under review, five (5) audit committee
September, 2021, 01" November, 2021, 02"d December,

constitution & attendance of the Audit committee:

Sr.

No.
Name Designation No. of meetings

entitled to attend
No. of meetings

attended
1. Mr. Sudhir Valia Ch airma n 5 5

2. Mr. Mahendra Mahajan * Member 4 4

3. Mrs. Shradha Panchamia Member 4 4

4. Mr. Harshal Bhuta** Member 1, 1

5. N4r. Mukesh Unadkat** Member 1 1

* Mr. Mahendra Mahajan ceased to be member of the Audit Committee w.e.f the closing hours of 22nd December,

2027.
1* Mr. Harshal Bhuta and Mr. Mukesh Unadkat were inducted in the committee w.e.f from 22'd December, 2021

The committee was re-constituted on 22"d December,2021.

Terms of reference of the audit committee -

the recommendation for appointment, remuneration and terms of appointment of auditors of the company;

review and monitor the auditor's independence and performance, and effectiveness of audit process;

examination of the financial statement and the auditors' report thereon;

approval or any subsequent modification of transactions of the company with related partiesi

scrutiny of inter-corporate loans and investments;

valuation of undertakings or assets of the company, wherever it is necessary;

evaluation of internal financial controls and risk management systems;

monitoring the end use of funds raised through public offers and related matters.

any other responsibility as may be assigned by the board from time to time.

, Credit Assessment Committee:

Constitution & attendance of the Credit Assessment Committee:

Sr.

No,

Name Designation No. of meetings
entitled to attend

No. of meetings
attended

1. Mr. Sudhir Valia * ch airm a n 19 19

2. Mr. Chintan Valia # Member & chairman 36 36

3. Mr. Mahendra Mahajan * Member 19 19

4. Mr. Anal Nayak Member 36 36

5. Mr. Umesh Kalantri ** Member 77 1.7

6. lvtr. Amol Ghute ** Member t7 l1

The committee was re-constituted on 8ih January, 2022

*Mr. Sudhir Valia and N4r. Mahendra Mahajan resigned from the committee on 8th January, 2022
** Mr. Umesh Kalantri and Mr. Amol Ghute were appointed as members of the Committee on 8th lan uary,2022

f Mr. Chintan Valia was appointed as chainnan of the committee on 8'h January, 2022 due to resignation of Mr' Sudhir

Valia
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During the year under review, Thirty six (35) credlt Assessment committee meetings were held and detaits of the same
are as under:

Meeting

No.

Date of Meeting Meeting
No.

Date of Meeting

1 13th April, 2021 19 3L" December,2O21
2 o8'n June, 2021 20 27" )anuary, 2022
3 15'" June, 2021 2l 27'^ January, 2022
4 17th June,2O21 )) O7'n February,2022
5 24th June,202! 23 11"'February,2022
6 t" July, 2ozt 24 16rh February,2o22
7 15'".,u|y, 2021 25 171^ February,2022

8 21" August, 2021 26 26' February,2022

9 31'' August, 2021 27 28'" Fefiuary,2022

10 03'd September, 2021 28 OAt" March, 2022

11 17rh september,2o2l 29 11t^ March, 2022

12 29" September, 2021 30 14r'March,2022

13 13th october,2021 31 15t" March, 2022

14 21t^ Octobet,2027 32 17th March, 2022

15 22"d November, 2021 33 23" March, 2022

16 3O'" November, 2021 34 2a" March, 2022

T7 17'" December,2O21 35 30'" March, 2022

18 23'd December, 2021 36 3 L't March, 2O22

> Risk Management Committee

Constitution & attendance of the Risk Management Committee:

5r.
No.

Name Designation No. of meetings
entitled to attend

No. of meetings
attended

1. Mr. Sudhir Valia** Cha irm a n 1 1

2. Mr. Chintan Valia*** Chairman & Member 1 1

3. Mr. Mahendra Mahajan* * Member I 1

4. Mr. Paras Mehta' Member 1 7

5. Mr. Anal Nayak* Member 1 1

6. Mr. Viren Rami' Member 1 1

7. Mr. Amol Ghute* Member 1 7

During the year under review, four (4) risk management committee meetings were held by the company on 19th Aprll,
2021, O3'd August, 2021, O1't November, 2021 and 08rh Ja nuary,2022.

The committee was re- constituted on 8th lanuary, 2022.

*Mr. Paras Mehta, Mr, Anal Nayak, Mr. Viren Rami and Mr. Amol Ghute were appointed as members of the
Committee
** Mr. Sudhir Valia and Mr. Mahendra Mahajan resigned from the Committee.
*** Mr. Chintan Valia appointed as Chairman due to resignation of Mr. Sudhir Valia

i Asset tiability Committee (ALCO)r

During the year under review, four (4) Asset Liability Committee meetings were held by the com

2021.,26rh May,2O21, o3'd August,2021 and o1'r November,2o21.

9th April,
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Constitution & attendance of the ALCO Committee:

Sr.

No.
Name Designation No. of meetings

entitled to attend
No. of meetings

attended
1. Sudhir Valia Cha irma n 4 4
2. Chintan Valia Member 4 4
3. Mahendra Mahajan Member 4 4

The committee was re- constituted on 8'h January,2022.

> CorporateSocialResoonsibilitv:

The provisions relating to the corporate social Responsibility were not applicable to the company during the year
2027-2022.

> Nomination and Remuneration Committee

Du-ring the year under review, one (1) Nomination & Remuneration Committee meeting was held by the company on
10'h December. 2021

Sr.

No.
Name Designation No. of meetings

entitled to attend
No. of meetings

attended
1. Sudhir Valia Cha irm a n 1 1

2. Shradha Panchamia Member 1 1

3. Mahendra Mahajan Member 1 1

The committee was re-constituted on 22"d December, 2021..

The company has designed the Nomination and Remuneration Policy and the salient features of the Policy are given
below:-

Appolntment criteria and qualificatlons:

a) The Committee shall identify and ascertain the integrity, qualification, expertise and experienceof the person for
appointment as a Director with the objective of having a Board with diverse background and experience in business,
educatioll and public service and recommend to the Board his / her appointment.

b) Attributes expected of all Directors include independence, high personal and professional ethics, sound business
judgment, ability to participate constructively in deliberations and willingness to exercise authority in a collective
manner.

c) Appointment of lndependent Directors is sub.iect to the provisions of Section 149 of the Act read with Schedule lV

and rules thereunder, RBI Guidelines and the Listing Regulations. The NRC shall check that the proposed person

satisfies the criteria of independence as stipulated under Section149(6) of the Act before his/ her appointment as

an lndependent Director.

d) ruo person shall be appointed as a Director, if he/she is subject to any disqualifications asstipulated under the Act or
any other law(s) for the time being in force.

e) A person shall possess adequate qualification, expertise and experience for the position he/ she is considered Ior

appointment. The Committee has discretion to decide whether qualification, expertise and experience possessed by a

person is sufficient /satisfactory for the concerned position. ln evaluating the suitability of individual Board members,

the Committee considers many factors, including general understanding of marketing, finance. operations,

management, public policy, legal, governance and other disciplines. The Board evaluates each individual in the

context of the Board as a whole, with the objective of having a Broup that can best perpetuate the su
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Company's business and represent stakeholders' interests through the exercise of sound judgment, using its diversity
of experience.

f) the Company shall not appoint or continue the employment of any person as director who has attained the age of
seventy years. Provided that the term of the person holding this position maybe extended beyond the age of seventv
years with the approval of shareholders by passing a special resolution based on the explanatory statement annexcd
to the notice for such motion ind icating the justification for extension of appointment beyond seventy years.

Evaluation:

The performance evaluation shall be carried out as given below:-

Board of Directors

lndependent Directors

- Board as a whole and Committees of Board
- All Directors excluding the Director being evaluated
- Non - lndependent Directors
- Chairman of the Company
- Board as a whole

Removal:

Due to reasons for any disqualification mentioned in the Act, rules made there under or under any other applicable
Act, rules and regulations, the Committee may recommend, to the Board with reasons recorded in wrlting, removal
of a Director, KMP or Senior Management subject to the provisions and compliance of the said Act, rules and

regulations.

Retirement:

The Director, KMP and Senior Management shall retire as per the applicable provisions of the Act and the prevailing

internal policy of the Company. The Board will have the discretion to retain the Director, KMP, Senior Management in

the same position / remuneration or otherwise even after attaining the retirement age, for the benefit of the

Company.

Provisions relating to Remuneration of Managerial Person, KMP and Senior Management

A) Non-Executive Directors / lndependent Directors

The key element of remuneration of Non-executive/ lndependent Directors is sitting fees, andCommission subject to

overall limit as prescribed in the Companies Act, 2013, and Rules made there under and the approva! of the

shareholders, and Articles of Association of the Company, as applicable. An lndependent Director shall not be entitled to

any stock option of the company

The company also bear/reimburse travelling and other expenses to outstation Directors for attending meetings and

expenses in relation to attending to matters or business of the Company.

B) senior Management, KMP and other Employees

The key components of remuneration package of the Senior Management, KMP and other employeesof the Company

shall comprise of etements like Base Salary, Allowances, Benefits, HRA and Statutory & Retirement benefits Thev maV

also be eligible for stock options as may be permitted under the applicable law or approvedSchemes based on thcir

grade.

Other Benefits
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Apart from remuneration package, currently the organisation provides
policy as decides by the management time to time,

Continuation Sheet No

employees with Mediclaim policy or any other

Review and Amendment

The NRC or the Board may review the policy annually or
guidelines, procedures, formats, reporting mechanism and
Policy, if it thinks necessary.

earlier when it deems necessary. The NRC may issue the
manual in supplement for better implementation to this

This Policy may be amended or substituted by the NRc or by the Board as and when required and also by the
compliance officer where there is any statutory changes necessitating the change in this poricy.

Commlttee Members' lnterests

A member of the committee is not entitled to be present when his or her own remuneration is discussed at a meeting
or when his or her performance is being evaluated.
The committee may invite such executives, as it considers appropriate, to be present at the meetings of the committee.

18. Compliance

The Company is registered with RBI as a Non-Deposit taking Housing Finance company. The company has complied
with and continues to comply with all the applicable provisions of the National Housing Bank Act, 1987, RBt Master
Direction - Non- Banking Financial Company - Housing Finance Company (Reserve Bank) Direcrions, 2021 tor HFCs
and all other applicable rules/regulations/guidelines, issued and as amended from time to time.

l9.Material chanses and commitments affectins financial statements between financial vear end aAd_dgtloJlglp4

Not applicable

20.Details of sisnificant and material orders passed bv the resulators or courts or tribunals impacting the piug
concern status and company's operations in future

No significant and material orders have been passed by the regulators or courts or tribunals impacting the going
concern status and company's operations in future.

21. Adeouacv of lnternal financial controls with reference to the Financial Statements

The Company has in place adequate systems of internal control that are commensurate with its size and nature of the
business and documented procedures coverin8 all financial and operating functions. The Company beinB rn service
industry, it has in place clear processes and well-defined roles and responsibilities for its staff at various levels. The
Management has a defined reporting system, which facilitates monitoring and adherence to the process and systems
in place.

22, Particulars of Loan. Guarantee and lnvestments

The details of the loans 8iven, investments made and guarantees provided by the company during the F.Y . 2021-2022
are provided in the notes forming part of the audited flnancial statements.

23. Extract of the Annual Return

Extract of the Annual Return as required under section 92 (3) of the Companies Act,
Companies (Mana8ement and Administration) Rules, 2014 is available on
www.fasttrackhfc.com.

2013 read with Rule 12 of the
the Company's website at

I
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24.lnternal Audit & Controls

As per the provisions of section 138 and all other applicable provisions of the companies Act, 2013 read with the
companies (Accounts) Rule,2014, lnternal Audit is not applicable to the company but, as per the applicabte provisions
of National Housing Bank (NHB) Regulations, lnternal Audit is applicable to the company. The company has in ptace
adequate systems of internal control that are commensurate with its size and nature of the business and documented
procedures covering all financial and operating functions. The Management has a defined reporting system, which
facilitates monitoring and adherence to the process and systems in place.

25. Visil Mechanism

ln pursuant to the provisions of section 177(9) & {10) of the companies Act, 2013, vigil Mechanism for directors and
employees to report genuine concerns is not applicable to the Company.

25, Secretarial Standards

The company complies with all applicable mandatory secretarial standards issued by the lnstitute of company
Secretaries of lndia (lCSl).

27. Risk ManaEement Policv

The Company has developed and implemented an effective Risk Management policy.

28. Statutorv Auditors

The Board of Directors in their meeting held on 24rh July, 2019 appointed M/s. Ramesh M. sheth & Associatcs,
Chartered Accountants, Mumbai having Firm registration No. 111883W as statutory auditors of the Company and
appointed them for a further period of 5 (Five) years i.e., commencing from the conclusion of 14rh Annual General
Meeting till the conclusion of 18th Annual General Meeting to be held in the year 2024 and on such remuncration, as
recommended by the Audit Committee and approved by the Board of Directors, in consultation with the said Auditors
plus reimbursement of out of pocket expenses, if any, incurred in connection with the said audit exclusive of other
fees pavable for other services, if any, rendered by them from time to time.

The Company has received a certificate under Companies Act, 2013 from M/s. Ramesh M. Sheth & Associates,
Chartered Accountants, Mumbai having Firm registration No. 111883W stating that the appointment made, is within
the limits as specified in that section.

The requirement to place the matter relating to appointment of auditors for ratification by members at every AGM
has been done away by the Companies (Amendment) Acl, 2017 with effect from May 7, 2018. Accordingly, no
resolution is being proposed for ratification of appointment of statutory auditors at the ensuing AGM and a note in
respect of same has been included in the Notice for this AGM.

29. Auditors' Reoort

The Auditors' Report does not contain any qualification and / or negative observations, hence do not require any
comments / explanations.

30. Cost Audit

As per the provision of Section 148 and all other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 reao with the Cost

audit Orders; Cost Audit is not applicable to the Companv's business.

31. Particulars of contracts or arransements with related oarties

All Related Party Transactions that were entered into during FY 2027-22 werc on an arm's length basis and in tho

ordinary course of business in accordance with Section 188(1) of The companies Act, 2013. None of the Directors had
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any pecuniary relationships or transactions with the company during Fy 2021,22. All related party transactions areplaced before the Audit Committee and Board meetings on quarterly basis for review.

I:.?:l:l:l i:l:l:l.fruy:r:T*.ji9lr ..d.9eatins with retated parties is avaitable on the company,s website
forms part of the annualreport and marked as Annexure ll. The disclosure in form Aoc - 2 forms part of the annual report and marked asAnnexure lll.

32. Conservation of Enerqv, Technolosv Abso![Ug!

{r) the steps taken or ir.npact on conseruation of energy---- 
-the steps taken by the Company for utilizing alternaiJsourcE of energy

Nit
(ii)

Nil
(iii) the capital investment on energy conservation equipment! Nil

Technoloqv absorptionr

Foreign Exchanqe Earnings or outso in foreipn exchange durinq the Fy 2021-22r

Foreign Exchange Earnings - Nil

Foreign Exchange Outgo - Nil

33. Transfer of unclaimed dividend to the lnvestor Education & protection Fund (lEpF)

The Company was not required to transfer any amount to the Fund.

34. Particulars of emplovees

There were no employees whose remuneration was in excess of the limits prescribed
Companies Act, 20L3 read with Rule 5 (2) & (3) of The Companies (Appointment &
Personnel) Rules, 2014.

Particulars of top 10 emplovees of the Companv in terms of remuneration drawn:

the effor! made towards technology absorption -'---'--
the beneflts derived like product improvement cost reduction proOuct OevJtoprent 0.ffi*
substitution

beginning of the financial year)

Nil
(ii)

Nil

(iii)
Nil

(a) the details oftechnology imported
the of im
whether the techn been fullV absorbed

(d) if not fully absorbed, areas where absorption has not taken place, and the reasoni
thereof

(iv) the expenditure incurred on Research and Oevelopment Nil

under section 134(3)(q) of the
Remuneration of Managerial

Designation
----:----_-_l5en,o, 

I

Manager 
i

Accounts I

Bustness IAPAC HSG

Finance Limited

Amrt Gopal Malpani

--19.d - l
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Sr.

No

Name of the Grosg

remuneration

Amol Bhaskarrao

Ghute

l-ast

i[dgvILe-!
Highway

ConcessioncA ].ol 1322,62,248



3
Ashish Eakulchandra

Naya k
20.05.2020 18,35,946 B.Com 42 19

Capriclobal
HFC Limited

Regiona

Sales

N,4anager -
Maharashtra

& Guiar,ir

4 Niyas Ahmed 18.0s.2020 12,90,797 MBA 38 13
MANNAPURAIV]

I]FC LTO

Regional

Sales

Ma nager

5
Ana nd ha n

Guruswamy
11.03.2021 5,87,207 BBA 44 19

NationalTrust
Housing

Fina nce timited

Branch

Credit
Ma naser

6 Devasenapathy A. 27.12.2018 5,7 5,394 BCA 40 18
UJ.]IVAN SMATL

FIN BANK

Branch
Cred t

Managcr

7
Murugan

DuraiAgamudayar
02.04.2021 s,52,706 B.Com 36 L2 Avlom lnd a Ltd

Branch

Credit
Manager -

Palampur &
Me hsa na

8 Pratik Prajapati 15.09.2021 3,3r,47t B.Com 37 2A
SH UBHAM HsG

FINANCE
Sales

9 S. Prakash 24.O1.2022 1,34,139 B.Com 47 14 DCB Bank
Eranch

Manage

10
Pradip Ramjanam

Yadav
11.03.1022 37,016 8A 35 L2

APAC HSG

FINANCE LTD

I)ranch
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The nature of employment of all the above mentioned employees is permanent and none of them are rclated to any
director or manager of the Company.

None of the aforementioned employee holds shares of the Company.

35. Human Resources

We consider our employees as the most valuable resource and ensure strategic alignment of Human Resource
practices to business priorities and objectives. The company takes pride in the commitment, competence and
dedication of its employees in all the areas of the business. The company is committed to nurturing, enhan€ing and
retaining its top talent through superior learning and organization development

35. Prevention of Sexual Harassment at Workplace

Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013 is applicable to the
company and the Company has complied with the constitution of lnternal Complaints Committee. The Committee
consists of -

Sr. No. Employee name Post of Committee Members
1 Amit Gopal Malpani Presiding Officer
2 Prerna Vinod Nandwani Member
3 Samata Ramchandra Gujar Member
4 Vandana Goradia Member

The Company is committed to provide a safe and conducive work environment to its employees during the year under
review, your Directors further state that during the year under review, there were no cases liled pursuant to the
Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013.

i

i_l

37. Directors' Responsibilitv Statement

tt

--ly{gqqi- l



FASTTRACK HOUSING FINANCE UMIED continuation.n"*1.:.:.":il
I

Pursuant to section 13a (5) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with rule 8 of the companies (Accounts) autes. zor4 to ]

the best oftheir knowledge and beliefconfirm that: 
I

' ln the preparation of the annual accounts, the applicable accounting standards had been followed atong with i

proper explanation relating to material departures;

' The Directors had selected such accounting policies and applied consistently and made judgments and estimales I

that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the company at the cnd i
of the financial year and of the profit and loss of the Company for that period;

The Directors had proper and sufficient care has been taken for the maintenance of adequate accounting records
in accordance with the provisions of this Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and
detecting fraud and other irregularities; and

The Directors had prepared annual accounts on a going concern basis.

. The Oirectors had devised proper systems to ensure compiiance with the provisions of all applicable laws and that
such systems were adequate and operating effectively.
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For and On behalf of the Board of
Fasttrack Housing Finance Limited
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Oirector
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Director

(DlN:00007639)

Place: Mumbai
Date: 23'd September, 2022
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Annexure I

lndustrv structure and developments

FY2022 Overview

lndia,stepped into FY2022 with rising number of covid cases and lockdown d,ue to 2"d wave of the pandemic. Indra wason the path of economic recovery post the I'r wave of covid-19 out th" z - *"re played spoilsport. The governmentannounced measures to support sectors hit hard by the prno"ric, il, j;;;;;';;;i;cr".i.';.""'r:.i'"';* r",healthcare, tourism and sma, borrowers, besides a Rs. zi,zio.ror"l'pr"n to strengthen the country,s medicarinfrasrructure. RBr, on its part, afiowed renderr to.i,.y oui'" ri"ir,-iorrio ot,;ri;r;f;r;;; oil;.;l.ioli,r r"o"r"Resolution Framework 2.o" which provided a sign of reiief ind much iieded.cushion to dectining asset quality. TheMonetary Policy committee (Mpc) of RBr had dicided to keep repo .ate and ,ererre *i"-r"i" i,"l"n"ii"i"L, tr,"eleventh time in a row at 4% and 3.3570, respectively. The rates weie last ievised in May 2020. The Mar8inat standinSFaciljty was also kept unchanged at 4.259". ihe regr.rlator had a".io"a to i,oro key tendinB rates steadv at record lowlevels to suppon a durable recovery ot the eco;omy. rhe nussra-u[raine c""iI.i n]i"rlipllt"j',n""".J"'l.v o,disrupting the supply chain which led-to increase in pri'ces oi ,aiiorr iooi items and fuel. As tndia,s retail inflation, asmeasured by the Consumer Price lndex {cPl), rose i5 months t ijrr lo-O.sSZ in the month of March 2022, breaching

||r","?,Bo,j [:f:i.n 
tolerance level, it is expecied that the regulatoi wiit iiiie poticy interest ,rt". inir,u irilr"." io r"e[

GDP, which contracted rn Q1FY2o21 and Q2FY2o21, made a turnaround and returned to positive territory rnq3FY2021. GDP.grew by a staggering 20.1% in e1Fi2022 .o.p"r"J-*,*, corresponding ;";;J'i;; v".i *f,un
11t19!ylq" lockdown had nearly halted aii economic acrivrties. The growth rate was 8.5% and 5.4yo in e2Fy2O22 and
Q3FY2022, respectively.

lnternational Monetarv Fund slashed lndia's SroMh forecast to 8,2% tot Fy2o23 lrom its earlier estimate of g% citing the
l:9.".IiY:^]T9^'.:,,_:Lhigher.oil 

prices led bv the ukraine war on domestic consumption and private investment. Despiteoownwaro revrsron rn estimates, lndia w,ll still retain its tag as the fastest growing major gtobat economv. Gtobaleconomv growth is expected to moderate lrcm 6.7% in 202-1 to 3.6% in 202i ana :'ozsl ReitrlJsriir,"i'iil nrorr ,projections for FY2023 trcm 7 8yo to 7.2%. IMF put the forecast for FY2024 GDp !ro*ir,r 
"t 

o.gz" tio, 
".iril."rtir.,",of 7.7%.

Housing Finance lndustry Overview

As per ICRA's report, the total outstanding housing finance credit for NBFC-HFC as on December 2021 stood at Rs.11.9 lakh crores. Disbursements were impacted in Q1FY2o22 due the second wave of the panae.iiina ir,i-iiorrt,yregistered nil sequential growth in the_on-book portfolio. Howeve., with easing of the pandemic and opu"|ni of tn"economy, there was a sharp recovery in e2ty2022 which continued for rest o-f the y"'.i 
"i *"fr 

-r"ir"iii"fi"""r 
"feconomic activity coupled with healthy demand in the industry are expected to result in . rt"ray i?or1, ot

disbursements Soing forward. within HFcs, the affordable housing segment is expected to grow it i'rutti,r"puiu tn"n
th-e^overall. industry supported by robust demand and liquidrty srippdrt from NH'8. Accordi-ng to tCnl;i estiiiate, tfre
HFC portfolio is expected to grow by 8-1Oo/. in F\2022 and g-lLNin iiZOZZ.

Th-e^.industry had an outstanding restructured book of 2.3% of the AUM as on september 30, 2021 as comoared to
1.7% as on March 11. 2021 and the same was expected to have been improved to 2.0% as - o"ce.o", ll, i6Jr.

RBfs notification providing clarification on the income recognition and asset classification (IRAC) norms had led to
HFcs reporting an increase in the GNPAs in Q3FY2o22. Howevei, RBt extended the applicaUitity of ttre sim" to'oiiotu, r,
2022, which is expected to allow for smoother adoption of the same.

Encouraging demand to pull more suppliers: The government's focus on 'Housing for All by 2022, has been
undeterred.an the last few years despite several headwinds. This has made the housi'ng iinance lpa."l ienier fo1.
traction with many new players entering the market. The affordable housing space has sEen a speci'at iraclion mainty
on account of robust demand, absence of big players and large untapped m;rket. Pradhan vantri ewas ioiana UrOan
(PMAY) which was launched in 2015 targetid the creation-of 50 mjltion houses ov zoiz unau, i-r,e i"il", ,ir"oit
Linked subsidy scheme' (cLss) for economically weaker sections and lower income groups, opened the doors for
customers who.remained away from owning a house. Resultantly, there have been larle numbers of new entiints in
the market. Of late, Banks too have increased their focus in the retail housing finance ipace which has increased the
competition in Rs. 25-75 lakh home loan segment of the market. Compared to this, itFCs operating in affoidable
housing space (sub Rs. 25 lakh loan category) have been growing well and are expected io outpace the i,iarttiv.
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To better leverage the respective comparative advantages of the banks and NBFcs in a collaborative effort, Rgl in itsc ircular dated Novem be r 05,2o2o has decid ed to p rovid; gre"ter op=e,aiiona t trexiuirity to irre ienjini i"riitr,il"i, *r,, ir"requirint them to conform to the reguratorv guiderines-on ortiirr""i, xvc, urc iii" pri,nliv i":.ri oiiii'"r"",r"0scheme, rechristened as "Co-Lending 
-Moaet'/ 

lcLrrai iiio irpior" irr"'iiB* or 
".ait 

to the unserved and underservedsector of the economv and make ,iaitJie r,i.ii iiriri" ,r'i.n"'t-"'il!.i"ir.r"rv at an affordabre cost, considerint thelower cost of funds from banks and greater reach of the NBFcs. Thi; ;"ria i,l. i"i neip-t" .i""ti"e I bi"jo? ...k"tfor the housing finance industry.

Govelnments' impetu-s on housing space to further oflen up the market: The government continued to focus onadding to more benefits for boosting housing and affordabli housing space. The union government in its budgetallocated Rs. 48,000 crores to PMAY. other incintives .nnorniea orririg i'he budget includes availing of tax benefit byboth spouses in case of joint ownership of home, no 
"aoitionJ 

l.uii"itv o, trriur" inio,ne in i"iJoilr-..|i-" orsecond self-occupied property etc.

The government implemented cut in GsT rates in FY2019 after the one which took place in Fy2o1g. The GsT rate forpremium houses was slashed to 5% from 12% whereas for affordable t,ouses, tt e iates nau" JrJrrp"J iJ,"'t" rzfrom 8%. Atthough, there are no benefits of input creait tax ror deveropers under these ,ates, tt e-JrieiitiJuti on tneconsumer side stands positive.

Regulator ,lnitiatives Regulatory Autho ty on HFcs shifted from NHB to tne RBt. The union Budget 2019_2020announced. the.transfer of regulatory power on HFC5 from NHB to the RBt. This is expected to iesult in morestreamlined regulations and imprementation as weI as better risk management framework for HFcs.

RBI issued a master circular on February 17, .202L providing a consolidated regulatory framework applicable to HFcs.This circular supersedes the previously issued direciions by itHB and RBt. jome-of tr," i"v r"eririioniinlirJ", 
--

' Maintenance of Liquidity buffer in terms of LCR: RBI has provided timelrnes for maintenance of liquidity bufferstarting from December 1, 2021 till December 1, 2025. All non-deposit taking xrcs *iir, aiset iiieiJ nt.'ioo o"and above and all deposit taking HFcs (irrespective of their asset size) sh6uld maintain i minirnum iiiuiaitycoverlSe Ratio (LcR) of 50% by December 1, 2021, which would then g;adua y inci""t" to rooz" iv 0".1,.0",-
1, 2025 All non-depqs]t taking HFcs wrth asset size between Rs. 50-10-0 bn should maintainl .i"ii16 icn or
J07o by December 1, 2021, which would then gradually increase to 1OO% by December 1, 2025.

' Fresh Registration and Net own€d Requirement: Companies intending to function as HFcs should resister with
RBI under Section 29A of NHB Act, 1987 and the minimum Net ownediunds (r,lor) snoula be ni.lo iior"r. ro|.
existing HFcs, whose NoF is less than Rs. 20 crores, they have to achieve the target of Rs. rS croi"iOy varct31,2022 and Rs. 20 crores by March 31, 2023.

' CRAR Requirement: Every housing finance company shall maintain a minrmum caprtal ratio on an onqoins basis
consisting of Tier-r and rier-I capital which shall not be less than 13?o as on lvtarih 31, zozo; r+y;-on" or 'uefore
March 31, 2021; and !5yo on or before March 31, 2022 and thereafter of its aggregate'risf *"[ntea aiseis ana
of risk adjusted value of off- balance sheet items. The Tier-t capital, at any poin-t oi time, stratt-noi te jeii tfran
10%.

t Risk weight on Home Loans: As per latest circular, housing loans shall attract a risk weight of 35%, if their loan-
to-value ratio is at 80% or lower. ln cases, where the Lry ;tio is higher than 80% but leis than or iquiiio goz.
the risk weights will be at 50%. ln Aptil 2022, RBI extended the lower risk weightage on nousing toins by one
year, saying that it would boost credit flow to the sector. ln October 2020, the R-Bt h;d decided to-rationalise the
risk weights by linking them only with LTV (Loan to Value) ratios for all new housing toans t"nciionea ,p to
March 31,2022. Now, thas has been extended to March 31,2023.

With a view to ens-uring uniformity across all lending institutions in the implementation of lncome Recognition, Asset
Llassrtrcation and Provisioning pertaininE to Advances (IRACP norms), RBI issued a circular on November 12; 2021.
!il]i:".:or: lending institutions upgraded accounts classified as ttpAi to'standard'.sut..t"gory rpon-p"y-r"nt ot
only rnterest overdues, partial overdues, etc. ln order to avoid any ambiguity in this regard, hat clarifiei ihat loan
acco!nts classified as NPAs maY be upgraded as 'standard' asset only if entire arrears of iniereit and principaiaie paid
by the borrower. Earlier the regulator had set March 31, 2022 deadline but later on extended the i".Jtine to
September 30, 2022 to put in place necessary systems to implement the provrsion.
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Progress under pMAy since 2014 (Major states)

88,602

20,545

Continuation Sheet No....

t4,074
6s8

1,06,173
15,510

863

11,546

51,193

8,27 L

53,896

1,90,648

9,724

8,387

Source: MHUPA os on i1't Morch, 2022

CLSS, GST, RERA, BenamiAct provided standardi:ation and accountability

GST and RERA has been so far successful in bringing standardization with respect to the taxes in relation to real estate
transactions and increase the accountability for developers respectively. Under RERA, builders need to register
themselves and projeds which have more than 8 apartments. Consumers ire also charged by carpet area. Moreor"1.,
buyers now have access to publications about project details, development plan, financia'i aetaits eti. ttriouitr ttre ngnn
website. The amendment to RERA further prevented builders from pre-sitting or selling units *ittori|ioi i"ttincclearance from allchannels, such as financrng.

On the demand side, the Government proposed a credit-linked subsidy capital, which could be as high as 44% (Rs.
2,57,000) for a loan of up to Rs. 6,00,OOO. On December 31, 2OtO, two ndw middle income categories wEre introduceA
under the scheme, loans of up to Rs. 9,00,000 and Rs. 12,oo,ooo with subvention of t% and 3yo, ,"rp"airelv. rt"
income eligibility criteria for the two categories are overall household incomes of Rs. 12,OO,0OO ina ifs. fA,bb,OOO,
respectively. The last date to avail the CLSS scheme was March 31, 2O2O for the two middle income categories bui
government first extended it till March 31, 2021 and then to M arch 31,2022.

Developers can have easier access to institutional credits through the infrastructure status. The infrastructure status
has enabled to reduce the borrowing costs, thereby enabling the-government's goals of affordable hor.rsingby 2022.

Another positive introduction was the amendment to the Benami Act, which prevents the hoarders of black money
from registering their properties and assets under other people's names, such as poorer family members/servants etc.
The benami owners of the property and other assets would have to provide souice of income for the sjid acquisttion
and if the person was unable to name the source of income (even if gifted), then the property/asset would be seiled. An
added prevention method of linking Aadhar card further demotivates benami properties from betng registered. These
steps will decrease cash component into the real estate sector.

Housing Credit Growth: The overall on-book portfolio growth of NBFC-HFC was 10% till period ended December 2021,
driven by the steady growth an disbursements. The total HFC credit in lndia is estimated at Rs. 11.9 lakh crores as on
?!!.e.m41 3! 2021. Given the buoyancy in disbursements, as per ICRA, loan book portfolio is expected to grow by 8-
10% to FY2O22 and 9-17yo in FY2O23. ,-.J-

States Project
proposal

Considered

Andhra Pradesh

Bihar

Chhattisgarh

Goa

Gujarat

H aryana

Himachal Pradesh

.Jharkhand

Karnataka

Kerala

Madhya Pradesh

Maharashtra

Odisha

Punjab

Rajasthan

Tamil Nadu

Telangana

Uttar Pradesh

Uttarakhand

West Bengal

Total

1,134

520

1,845

1o

t,7 L7

457

308

453

2,760

699

1,8s4

1,555

976

885

422

4,708

303

4,539

243

656

26,O45
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Asset quality: Ass€t quality which had started improving towards the end of Fy2o22 faced additaonal strain due to the
second wave in Q1FY2022. The GNpAs increased sign-ificantty in e1Fy2O22 fo owed by " ,"ior"iy in qirVZOZ:.
However, tighter regulations by RBt led to an increase in the GNpAs to 3.3o/. i^ e3Fy2}i2. With the expeitaiion of
some recovery in Q4FY2022, driven by contlnuing healthy collections, ICRA has revised its estimate of reported GNpAs
to 3.0-3,3% as on March 31,2022 lrcm earlier estimate of 3.6-3.8% as on March 31, 2022. GNPA ii expected to
recover further in lY 2023 to 2.7 -3 .Oyo

Funding and Liquidity: Capital and liquidity remain silver linings for the sector. Considering the growth rate going
forward, any size.able_equity infusion is not the need of the hour.However, the sector would rEquire-ni. 1.2 lalh crores
of additional funding for the envisaged growth in Fy2023.

Outlook:

tY2021 was a challenging year for housing finance industry in terms of muted disbursement, low collections and
worsening of asset quality during the first half of the financial year. with gradual opening of the economy, business was
slowly getting back on its track but it raced another headwind in the begin;ing of Fi2022-with the 2"d wave of pandemic.
The challenges posed by the 2"" wave led to lower collections and deterioration of asset quality in e1Fy20r2, though
the industry saw a sharp recovery in Q2FY2O22 which continued going forward as well. With the introduction of ne-w
RBI NPA reco8nition norm, asset quality indicators are estimated to remain elevated in the near term, nevertheless it
is expected to revive almost to the pre- Covid level in Fy2023.

Risks and concerns

As.a rinancial institution, company is exposed to various risks that are related to its business; like credit risk, liquidity
risk, interest rate risk, operational risk i.e. compliance, employees, legal, risk etc. To manage these risks, the tompany
has adopted a Risk Management Policy which defines various risis and also a framework to manage/ mitigate/
address each of such risks.

The Company has in place a mechanism to identify, assess, monitor and mitigate various risks to key business objectives.
Maior risks identified by the businesses and functions are systematically addressed throu8h miiigating actions on a
continuing basis.

The Company,continuously monitors loan portfolio and portfolio level delinquency metrics are tracked at regular
intervals with focus on detection of early warning signals of stress. These limits are periodically reviewed based on
changes in the macro- economic environment, regulatory environment and industry dynamic. Key sectors are analyzed
in detail to suggest strategies, considering both risks and opportunities. Corrective action, if required, is taken well in
advance.

The risk strategy laid down by your company helps foster a disciplined culture of risk management and control. ln
conjunction with these practices, your Company intends to optimize its capital needs through growth, by achieving
highest returns on capital employed while managing risks appropriately.

Your Company follows the best practice for management of credit risk. market risk, liquidity risk and operational risk
and has
put in place a comprehensive Risk Management Policy envisaging a robust risk management program.

The Company has a Risk Management Committee in place. The Risk Management Committee assists the Board to
mitigate the various risks which the companV is exposed with.

lnternal control svstems and their adeauacv,

the Company has an adequate system of internal control ln place which has been designed to provide a reasonable
assurance with regard to maintaining proper accounting controls, monitoring of operations, protecting assets from
unauthorized use or losses, compliance with regulations and for ensuring reliability of financial reporting.

The Company has robust internal audit program, where the internal auditors, an lndependent Audit firm of Chartered
Accountants, conduct a risk-based audit with a view to not only test adherence to laid down policies and procedures but
also to suggest improvements in processes and systems. Their audit program is agreed upon by the Audit Committee. lnternal
audit observations and recommendations are reported to the Audit Committee, \r,/hich monitors the implementation of
such recommendations.

Material developments in Human Resources / lndustrial Relations front, includine number of people emploved-

Management team has been stren8thened. Critical functions such as Sales, Credit, Operatrons and Collections are
being driven by independent heads. The Company has total headcount stands at 71 (as on 31" March,2022)
employees. A captive Technical and Legal organisation has been created to provide strong foundation. With the high
level of commitment and loyalty by staff members and the parent group, The Company is confident to face the
challenges of all the adverse conditions while emerging out as a winner.
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Opportuniiies and Threats

Opportunities

. Low mongage penetration in tndia

. Growing demand of housing in rural and semi-urban areas

. Government initiatives to boost affordable housing

Threats

' short term economic srowdown and uncertain poriticar environment impacting business activities
. lncreased intensity of competition

' Rising inflation is likely to escalate cost of construction of houses resulting in reduction of demand.
. Significant delays in construction by developers/builders.

Financial Highlights

P-fit *d Losr A."*r.t March 2022 March 2021
lnterest revenue from operation 7,401 .67 1,615.51

Other income from operation

Otl"", h."." 

-

57.10 22.61

125.89 193.70
Total income 1,590.50 1,831.82

Finance cost

Manpower cost

684.00 903.07

310.23 282.77

Operating expenses & Depreciation & amortization 788.27 257.47

Operatint profit 408.10 394.51

Lredrt loss 433.95 217.96

Profit before tax (2s.8 s) 182.55

Tax expenses (1o.72) 4t.79
Profit after tax (1s.13) L40.16

" lncludes

One-time charge to bad debt 84.48 247.75

Additional impairment provision towards COVTD 19 and loans
on which one-tlme restructuring was implemented

721 .34 6.2 5

lmpairment provision on receivable 229.86

One-time charge to P&L 44L.64 254.00

The AUM has shrank from 0 11,329.s4 Latts to I s,65ais Laki;, ho*erer, overall 
"ffiai"*v 

h., i.np.o*d
with NPA declining from 0 672.91 Lakhs to 0 527.23 Lakhs.
Further, the NtM/spread has improved from [Jj5.o5 Lakh, to D8o71 Lakh,

I I
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AUM of last 2 years

6,417.32

10,037.10

Outlook

Government initiative under "Housing for ar 6y 2022" has created new era in the housing sector especiaflv in theaffordable housing lt is expected to -oetir". mJct nEo"a-u""-rti" ii1"r".t est"t" and housing finance industry bycreating an enabling & supportive environment to. expanUing iieJiiftow and increasing ;;;"";;;;;;;. ;r,rg,"gReal Estate (Regulation and rDevelopment) Act is anoihe; rilntri."ni i".trr" which wi streamline the busrnesspractices in the Real Estate Sector.

Through Pradhan Mantri Awas Yojana (PMAY), Urban launched in June 201s.under the mis'sion ,,Housing for All by2022", Government of rndia has inire-asid tte'it'iriii, r,orii"fr"it"r, ".n-Jirir" 
n",rr:;;; l;;;;ir.;i;;'iln"d""/ rror,schemes that provide demand side (credit t-inked subsidy sihEme-ini 6enericiary-tea iniividuat-trJu-ie Jo,isirrctionland supply side (slum rehabilitation with participation o'f piiu"t" J"r"iop"rr and Affordabte housing in pannershipwith Public and Private sectors) intervention have been ruuiirr"J*itr,'an ii- to increase housing sto.[ in r|ji".'

with all tle learnings from the past and subsequent corrective measures, the Company is poised to opportune fromlndia's Srowing demand for affordable housing. FY2o18 to rvzozf have btien years ot consolidation with conservatrveapproach in terms of growth. The companv has successfu y buitt its inadjendeni d"i;ri;;;i;';i ;eii'creoit,collection, tegat, compriance and rjsk. The mutuary excrusive operationi of th;; ;;;;rtri;i; ;liitrnn"r''r.,Jrp ,, inmaintaining'quality' growth in future as well.

The economy might take a little beating.in case of emergence of new variants of covid-19 and imposition of lockdown
:,I:T::i:::r"?l ,l-dla (cot). NBFC and hr-Cs can face;halenges on both the fronts, assets;ide'a; weiiai oniiaOirity
11M9]-"-"."1-il9,jnd Gol has,alwavs bee-n quick to respond in these crrcumstances as seen in the past and the samers expected ln the iuture as well in case of need arises. As all the lockdown restricfions are lifted now and businessesare back to function at pre-covid levels, we are futty prepared to riae next teg of gi;;ir,l" 

"ii"iadl'i"'r,-9,irii!'iin.n..space.

Further, The company continues to view its m_arketing plans through the Broad lens of addressing the New tndia thatis emerging beyond metros. The company focuses-on Teir- a;d Teir- l cities where nJusiig oeminj il .or"prominent.

The Company is also considering the following facts to grow at pace:

.l ]l're qompanyfocuses on good mix offunding resources/ borrowings from banks/ lenders.ii The Company's management team has a sirong execution track-record with ipecialized expertise in theHousing Finance sector. The management team is young, well qualified with high degree oi professional
competency.

iii. The Company has adopted best practices to robust risk management framework, efficient structure,
requisite policies and procedures under guidance of a highry experienced Board of Dire;tors.

Cautionary Statement

Statements made in the Management Discussion & Analysis describing the Company's objectives, projectrons,
estimates, expectations_may be "Forward'looking statements" within the rieaning of applicaUr6 fawii i"liiitionr.
Actual results could differ from those expressed or implied. lmportant factors t[at couta make a differenie to the
company's operations include economic conditions affecting demand supply and price conditions in tnL domestic &
overseas markets in which the Company operates, changes in the government regulations, tax laws & other statutes
and other incidental factors.

^')l
) 

e-,:

lEt

Salaried
4,77 4.98

Self Employed 4,879.31

9,6s4.3s 17,379.83

Home Loan 8,495.37
Loan agarnst property

1,158.98 7,292.14

49.99

9,654.35 11,379.83
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1. lntroduction

Policy on Rerated party Transactions is prepared in terms of provisions of companies Act,
policy aims to regulate transaction between company and rts Related parties in light of
environment.

2. Obiective

Purpose of this policy is to ray down the procedures and discrosures with regard to
Transactions and thereby ensuring transparency between such transactions

2013 rhis
regulatory

Related Party

3. Effectiveness

This policy shall come into effect from the date of approval by the Board of Directors of the company or
any committee of the Board to which power has been delegated.

4. Definitions

amendment(s)/modif ication(s) thereof .

! "Arms Length Transaction" as defined u/s 1gg of the companies Act, 20r.3 means a transaction
between two related parties that is conducted as if they were unrelated, so that there is no
conflict of interest.

) "Audit committee" means committee of Board of Directors of the company constituted as per
the provisions Section 177 of the Companies Act, 2013.

"Board" means Board of Directors of the Company.

"Company'' means Fasttrack Housing Finance Limited

"Key Managerial Personnel" as defined u/s 2(51) of the Companies Act, 2013 in relation to a
company, means-

(i) the Chief Executive Officer or the managing director or the manager;

(ii) the company secretary;

(iii) the whole-time director;

(iv) the Chief Financial Officer;

(v) such other officer, not more than one level below the directors who is in whole-time
employment, designated as key managerial personnel by the Board; and

(vi) such other officer as may be prescribed

"NHB Regulation" means Housing Finance Companies - Corporate Governance (National

Housing Bank) Directions, 2015 issued by the National Housing Bank including any amendment
thereof.

P "Policy" means Policy on Related Party Transactions.
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> "Related party" with reference to a company u/s 2(76) of the Companies Act, 2013 means_

(i) a director or his relative;

(ii) a key managerial personnel or his relative;

(iii) a firm, in which a director, manager or his relative is a partner;

(iv) a private company in which a director or manager 1lor his relative] is a member or director;

{v) a public company in which a director or manager is a director 2[and holds] along with his
relatives, more than two per cent of its paid_up share capital;

(vi) any body corporate whose Board of Directors, managing director or manager is accustomed
to act in accordance with the advice, directions or instructions of a director or manager;

(vii) any person on whose advice, directions or instructions a director or manager is accustomed
to act:

Providedthat nothing in sub-crauses (vi) and {vii) shal appry to the advice, directions or
instructions given in a professional capacity,

(viii) any body corporate which is-
(A) a holding, subsidiary or an associate company of such company;

(B) a subsidiary of a holding company to which it is also a subsidiary; or

(C) an investing company or the venturer ofthe company;,,

Explanation.-For the purpose of this clause, "the investing company or the venturer of a
company" means a body corporate whose investment in the company would result in the company
becoming an associate company of the body corporate.l

(ix) such other person as may be prescribed;

"Relative" with reference to any person u/s2(77) of the Com pa nies Act, 2013 meansanyone
who is related to another, if-

(i)they are members of a H indu Undivided Family;

(ii) they are husband and wife; or

(iii) one person is related to the other in such manneras may be prescribed pursuant to
Rule 4 of the Companies {Specification of Definitions Details) Rules, 2014

"Related Party Transactions" shall mean to include
Transfer of resources, services or obligations between the Company and a related party,

regardless of whether a price is charged and a "transaction,, with a related party shall be
construed to include a single transaction or a group of transactions in a contract in any
financial year;

contract or arrangement entered into with a related party with respect to_
(a) sale, purchase or supply of any goods or materials;

(b) selling or otherwise disposing of, or buying, property of any kind;

(c) leasing of property of any kind;
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(d) availing or rendering of any services;

(e) appointment of any agent for purchase or sale of goods, materials, services or property;
(f) such related party,s appointment to any office or place of profit in the company,its
subsidiary company or associate company; and

(g) underwriting the subscription of any securities or derivatives thereof, of the company:
Any other term not defjned herein shall have the same meaning as defined in Act

5. Terms of the policv

All the Related party Transactions proposed to be entered by the Company shall require
approval of the Audit committee incruding the transactions to be entered not in the ordinary
course of business. The Audit committee sharr recommend the Rerated party Transaction(s) for
the approval of Board of Directors/ sharehorders as per the terms of this poricy and the
applicable provisions of Act including any amendment(s) / modification (s) thereto,

The Related Party Transactions entered into in the ordinary course of Business and transacted
at Arms' Length shalr not require approvar of the Board of Directors. However, arr rerated party
transactions to be entered by the company sharr require prior approvar of the Audit committee.

All Related Party Transactions as defined under the section 1g8 (1), exceeding the threshord
limits prescribed under rure 15 of the companies (Meetings of Board and its powers) Rures, 2014
(or any amendment thereto), shall require prior approval of the Audit committee, Board of
Directors and Shareholders of the Company by way of a shareholder,s resolution.

6. Aooroval procedure of Related partv Transactions

! Every potential Rerated party Transaction shal be reviewed by Audit committee on quarterry
basis to ensure that no conflict of interest exists and evaluate it from the perspective of Arms,
Length Pricing and is subject to the prior approval of the Audit committee whether at a meeting
or by resolution by way of circulation.

F Any member of the Audit committee who has a potentiar interest in any Rerated party
Transaction shall abstain from discussion and voting on the approval of the related party
transaction,

Audit committee shall have all the rights to call for information/docu ments in order to
understand the scope of the proposed related party transactions and devise an effective control
system for the verification/review of supporting documents.

upon completion of its verification/review of the transaction, the Audit committee may
determine whether to allow or disallow from entering into the Related party Transaction. The
Audit committee shall also have the right to suggest any modification(s) in the proposed related
party transaction.
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> The Audit committee may grant omnibus approval, pertaining to the transactions in the nature
of ordinary course of business or repetitive in nature or with respect to such ceiring approvar
and that such approvar is in the best interest of the company. such omnibus approvar shal be in
accordance with the provisions of Act and shall specify the conditions/criteria on the basis of
which approval has been granted. The omnibus approval shall provide name/s of the related
party, nature of transaction, period of transaction, maximum amount of transaction that can be
entered into in a financial year and any other details as may be preceded in the Act.

) Audit committee sharr review, on a quarterry basis, the detairs of Rerated party Transactions
entered into by the Company pursuant to omnibus approval given.

! Such approval granted wirr be varid for the period not exceeding one year and shafl be ratified by
the board at the next board meeting.

8. R"ri"* 
"nd 

aoororul of R"l"t"d p"rt, Tr"nrration, b, Borrd of Dir""tor, 
"nd 

Sh"r"holdurc

ln case the Audit committee determines that the Rerated party Transaction requires the
approval of the Board of Directors or shareholders as per the terms of this policy and applicable
regulatory provisions then, it shall refer the said Related party Transaction to the Board of
Directors for its approval arong with all the relevant information/ documents pertaining to the
same which may include Nature of the transaction, Key terms, Key covenants, Special terms
covered / to be covered in separate letters or undertakings or any other speciar or sub
arrangement forming part of a composite transaction.

The Board shall review the Related party Transaction and recommendations of the Audit
committee, if any, and shalr have the authority to cal for such additionar
information/documents as it may deem appropriate and may approve with or without
modification(s) or reject the proposed related party transaction as per the terms of this policy
and other applicable regulatory provisions.

ln case, the Board determines that the Related party Transaction requires approval of the
shareholders as per the terms of this policy and applicable regulatory provisions then, it shall
refer the said Related Party Transaction to the shareholders for its approval along with all the
relevant information/ documents pertaining to the same, as per the appropriate regulatory
provisions.

9. Disclosures

The company shall disclose Related party Transactions in the Financial statements and Annual
Report of the company in accordance with Act, Accounting standards, and NHB Regulation lt
shall also put up Policy Related Party Transactions on the website of the company and make a
disclosure in the Annual Report/Financial Statements of the Company on annual basis.

The particulars of all the Related Party Transaction entered into with the approval of the Audit
committee / Board of Directors / shareholders shall be entered into the Register of contracts
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Company as per the
or-Arrangements in which Directors are interested, maintained by the
provisions of the Act.

10

ln the event the company becomes aware of a transaction with a rerated party that has not beenapproved in accordance with this Policy prior to its consummation, the matter shall be reviewed bythe Audit committee. The Audit committee sha, consider a, of the rerevant facts and
circumstances regarding the related party transaction, and shall evaluate all options available to thecompany, including ratification, revision or termination of the rerated party transaction. The Audit
committee sha'arso examine the facts and circumstances pertaining to the fairure of reporting
such related party transaction to the Audit committee under this policy and failure of the internal
control systems, and shall take any such action it deems appropriate.

ln any case, where the Audit committee determines not to ratify a rerated party transaction that
has been commefced without approval, the Audit Committee, as appropriate, may direct
additional actions incruding, but not rimited to, discontinuation of the transaction or seeking the
approval of the sharehorders, payment of compensation for the ross sufferd by the rerated party
etc ln connection with any review/approval of a related party transaction, the Audit committee
has authority to modify or waive any procedural requirements of this policy.

11. Amendments

> it 
" 

nrait committee and Board of Directors shafl once in two years review the poricy and propose
modifications/ amendments, if deemed necessary, to this policy.
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Annexure lll

Form AOC 2

[Pursuant to clause (h] of sub-section (3) of section 134 read with Rule
8 (2) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules. 20141

[Form for disclosure of particulars of contracts / arrangements entered in to by the Company with related
parties referred to in sub section (1) of section 188 of the companies Act, 2013 including certain arm length
transactions under third proviso theretol

1. Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions not at arm,s length basis :

During the financial year April 2021 to March 2022 lhe Company has not entered in to any contracts or
arrangements or transactions with any related parties which are not at arm's length. The Company has in its
place the policy / process to ensure the compliance of applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and
rules made there under relating to related party transactions.

Sr.

No.
Particu la rs Remarks

a) Name of the related parties and nature of relationship Not a pplica ble
b) Nature of contracts or arrangements or transactions Not a pplica ble
c) quration of contracts or arrangements or transactions Not applica ble
d) Salient terms of contracts or arrangements or transactions includ ing

the value
Not applica ble

e) Justification for entering in to such contracts or arrangements or
transactions

Not a pplicable

f) Date of approval by the Boa rd Not a pplica ble

c) Amount paid as adva nces Not a pplica ble
h) Date on which the special resolution was passed in general meeting as

required under first proviso to section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013
Not a pplicable

2. Details of material contracts or arrangements or transactions at arm's length :

During the financialyear April 2021 to March Z0ZZ the Company has entered in to contracts or arrangements
or transactions with related parties which are in the ordinary course of business and at arm's length except for
the investments and /or disinvestments, if any made by the Company which are of strategic nature and not on
ordinary course of business. All transactions with related parties are as per Company's policy on related party
transactions.

The Company has in its place the policy/process to ensure the compliance of applicable provisions of the
Companies Act,2013 and rules made there under relating to related party transactions.
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For and On behalf of the Board of
Fasttrack Housing Finance Limited

*01--tl' 
' I\'1"^l'

Paras Mehta
Director

(DlN : 00007639)

dhir Valia
Director

: 00005561)

Place: Mumbai
Date: 23'd Septem ber, ZOZZ

Holding Company

Name of the
related

parties and
nature of

relationship

Nature of contracts or
arrangements or

transactions

Duration of
contracts or

arrangements or
transactions

Salient terms
of contracts or
arrangements
or transactions
including the
value (Rs. ln

lakhs)

Date of
approval by
the Board

Amoun

t paid

as

advanc
es

(Rs. ln
la khs )

La kshdeep
lnvestments

& Finance

Limited

lnter Corporate
Borrowings taken

Co ntin uo us basis 7 ,650 1.9/041202L Nit

lnter Corporate
Borrowings repa id

Continuous basis L,920 t9l04l202r Nil

lnterest on lnter
Corporate Borrowing

Co ntin uo us basis 523.34 t9/04/2027 Nil
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

TO THE MEMBERS OF FASTTRACK HOUSING FINANCE LIMITED

Report on the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying standalone financial statements of Fasttrack Housing

Finance Limited ("the Company"), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 3L,2022,

the Statement of Profit and Loss (including other Comprehensive Income), the statement of

change in equity and the Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended on that date and a

summary of the significant accounting policies and other explanatory information (herein after

referred to as "the standalone financial statements").

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to

us, the aforesaid standalone flnancial statements give the information required by the

companies Act, 2013 ("the Act") in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in

conformity with the Indian Accounting Standards prescribed under Section 133 of the Act read

with companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rule, 2015, as amended, ("Ind AS") and other

accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at
March 31, 2022, the Loss and total Comprehensive Income, Changes in Equity and its Cash

Flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the financial statements in accordance with the Standards on

Auditing spectfled under section 143(10) of the Act (SAs). Our responsibilities under those

Standards are further described inthe Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial

Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with

the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India ("ICAI") togethe,-

with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements under

the provisions of the Act and the Rules made thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other

ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the ICAI's Code of Ethics.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is suFflcient and appropriate to provide

a basis for our audit opinion on the standalone financial statements.

ffi,m
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Information Other than the Standalone Financial Statements and Auditor's
Report Thereon

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation of the other information.
The other information comprises the information included in the Board's Report including
Annexure to Board's Report but does not include the standalone financial statements and our
auditor's repoft thereon.

Our opinion on the standalone financial statements does not cover the other information and
we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.
In connection with our audit of the standalone financial statements, our responsibility is to
read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is
materially inconsistent with the financial statements, or our knowledge obtained during the
course of our audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement
of this other information; we are required to repoft that fact. We have nothing to report in

this regard.

Responsibility of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the
Standalone Financial Statements

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of
the Act with respect to the preparation of these standalone financial statements that give a

true and fair view of the financial position, financial performance, total comprehensive gain,

changes in equity and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the Ind AS and other
accounting principles generally accepted in India. This responsibility also includes maintenance
of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding
the assets ofthe Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities;
selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates
that are reasonable and pruden! and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate
internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the
standalone financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the
Company's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to
going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either
intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternatlve but to
do so,

The Board of Directors are responsible for overseeing the
process.

financial reporting

w



Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the standalone Financial statements

Our objectlves are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the standalone financial
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error,
and t0 issue an auditor's repoft that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level
of assurance but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud
or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably
be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial
statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professionaljudgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

' identify and assess the risks of materiai misstatement of the standalone financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufflcient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting
from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.o Obtain an understanding of internal financial controls relevant to the audit in orderto design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) ofthe
Act, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the company has
adequate internal financial controls system in place and the operating effectiveness of
such controls.

Evaluate the appropriateness oF accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the companyt
ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists,
we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modifli our opinion. Our
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report.
However, future events or conditions may cause the company to cease to continue as a
going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the standalone financial
statements, including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.



It4ateriality is the magnitude of misstatements in the financial statements that, individually or
in aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable
user of the financial statements may be influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and
qualitative factors in (i) planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of
our work; and (ii) to evaluate the effect of any identified misstatements in the financial
statements.

we communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence,
and where applicable, related safeguards.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1) As required by the companies (Auditor's Report) order, 2020 ("the order") issued by the
central Government in terms of section 143(11) of the Act, we give in "Annexure A"
since, in our opinion and according to the information and explanation given to us, the
said Order is applicable to the Company.

2) As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, based on our audit we repoft that:

a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of
our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the
Company so far as it appears from our examination of those books.

c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including Other Comprehensive
Loss, statement of changes in Equity and the statement of cash Flow dealt with by
this Report are in agreement with the relevant books of account.

d) In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone financial statements comply with the Ind
AS specified under section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the companies
(Accounts) Rules, 2014.

e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March
37, 2022 taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified
as on lvlarch 3L, 2022 from being appointed as a director in terms of section 164 (2)
of the Act.
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s)

h)

with respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial
reporting of the company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to
our separate Report in "Annexure 8". our report expresses an unmodified opinion
on the adequacy and operating effectiveness of the company's internal financial
controls over financial reporting.

with respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance
with the requirements of section 197 (16) of the Act, as amended:

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations
given to us, the remuneration paid by the company to its directors during the year is
in accordance with the provisions of section 197 of the Act.

with respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance
with Rule 11 of the companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended in our
opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to
us:

i. The Company does not have any pending litigations on its financial position.

ii. The Company does not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts
for which there were any material forceable losses.

iii. There was no amount required to be transferred to Investor Education and
Protection Fund by the company in accordance with the provisions of the Act, and
the rules made there under.

iv. (a)The Management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief,
no funds (which are material either individually or in the aggregate) have been
advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or
any other sources or kind of funds) by the Company to or in any other person or
entity, including foreign entity ("Intermediaries.,), with the understanding, whether
recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, whether, directly or
indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner
whatsoever by or on behalf of the company ("ultimate Beneficiaries") or provide any
guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneflciaries;

(b)The Management has represented, that, to the best of its knowledge and belief,
no funds (which are material either individually or in the aggregate) have been
received by the Company from any person or entity, including foreign entity
("Funding Parties"), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or
otherwise, that the Company shall, whether, direcfly or indirectly, lend or invest in
other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the
Funding Party ("Ultimate Beneficiaries") or provide
like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneflciaries;

any security or the



(c) Based on the audit procedures that have been considered reasonable and
appropriate in the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us
to believe that the representations under sub-clause (i) and (ii) of Rule 11(e) of
Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rule, 2014, as provided under (a) and (b) above,
contain any material misstatement.

The Company has not paid any dividend during the year and hence provisions of
section 123 of the Companies Act 2013 was not applicable

For Ramesh M. Sheth & Associates
Chartered Accountants

ICAI Firm Registration No. 111883W

Place: Mumbai
Datez 23/09/2022
UDINr 22101598AVKLFW3389

(Mehul R. Sheth)
( Partner)

(Membership No.1O1598)
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Annexure - A to the Auditors'Report

Referred to in paragraph 1 under 'Report on other legal and regulatory requirements,
section of our report to the members of Fasttrack Housing Finance Limited on the
Standalone Financial Statements of even date.

To the best of our information and according to the explanations provided to us by the
Company and the books of account and records examined by us in the normal course of
audit, we re po rt that:

(i) In respect to Propety, PIant and Equipment, Investment property and Intangible
assets,
a,

(A) The Company is maintaining proper records showing full particulars
including quantitative details and situation of property, plant and
Equipments including Property held as Investment property.

(B) The company is maintaining proper records showing full particulars of
Inta ngible assets.

The company has a regular program of physical verification of its property plant
and Equipment by which all the Property Plant and Equipments are physically
verified by the management during the year at regular intervals. In our opinion
and according to the information and explanation available with us, no material
discrepancies were noticed on such physical verification.

The title deeds of all the immovable properties (other than properties where the
company is the lessee and the lease agreements are duly executed in favor of
the lessee, if any) disclosed in the financial statements are held in the name of
the Company.

The Company has not revalued any of its Property, Plant and Equipment, Tangible
or Intangible, during the year under audit and hence reporting under this clause
is not applica ble.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanation available with
us, no proceedings have been initiated or are pending against the Company for
holding any benami property under the Benami Transactions (prohibition) Act,
1988 and rules made thereunder.

b.

c.

d.

:sSf*,"ms{i:fi:i;ia}E3[lh.lurruo/i
V*-,J.onWe

( ii) In respect of Inventories
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a. The company is a Service Company primarily engaged in providing short/long
term Housing Finance Services. Hence the Company does not hold any
inventories during the year and hence reporting under Clause 3(ii)(a) of the
Order is not a pplica b le.

The Company has not been sanctioned any working capital limits the amount of
which exceeds Rs five crores from any bank or financial institutions on the basis
of security of current assets and thus reporting under Clause 3(ii)(b) of the Order
is not applica ble.

respect of Investment, Loans, Advances and Guarantees:

The Principal business of the company is to give loans and hence reporting
under Clause 3(iii)(a) of the Order is not applicable.

The Investments and the terms and conditions of the grant of loans and
advances in the nature of loans are not prejudicial to the Company's interest.

The Company is a Housing Finance Company ('HFC'), registered under
provisions oF the National Housing Bank Act, 1987 and rules made thereunder
and is regulated by various regulations, circulars and norms issued by the
Reserve Bank of India including Master Circular - Prudential norms on Income
Recognition, Asset Classification and Provisioning pertaining to Advances. In
respect of loans and advances in the nature of loans granted by the Company,
we report that the schedule of repayment of principal and payment of interest
has been stipulated and the re paym ents/receipts of principal and interest are
regular except For cetain instances as below:

Particulars - days past due Total amount due (t in Lakhs) No. of cases

I - 30 Days 755.00 82

3l-60 davs 487.02 47

60-90 days 192.40 23

91 or more days 302.01 31

Total 1,736.43 183

Based on our audit procedures and the information and explanation made
available to us, in case where overdue amount is outstanding for more than 90
days in case of loans given in course of the business operations oF the Company,
reasonable steps, as per its policy and procedures, have been taken by the
Company for recovery of the principal and interest. The total amount which is
overdue for more than 90 days as at 31 March 2022 in respect of loans or
advances in the nature of loans granted to such companies, firms, LLps or other
parties is as follows:

Particulars Total amount due (t in Lakhs) No. of cascs

Principal 3 02.01 3l

b.

( iii)

a)

b)

c)

d)

e) The Company is a Housing Finance Company and its is to give



(iv)

(v)

loans. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(iii)(e) of the Order is not applicable
to the Company

f) The company has not granted any loans and advances in the nature of loans by
way of either repayable on demand or without specifying any terms or period of
repayment and thus para 3(iii)(f) of the Order is not applicable.

The Company has complied with provisions of section 185 and 186 of the Act where
applicable in respect of loans, investments, guarantees and securities made.

The Company has not accepted any deposits or amounts which are deemed to be
deposits from the public, within the meaning of directives issued by the Reserve
Bank of India, provisions of Sections 73 to 76 of Companies Act 2013, and other
relevant provisions of the Act and the relevant rules framed there under and hence
repofting under Clause 3(v) is not applicable.

(vi) The maintenance of cost records has not been specified by the Central Government
under section 148 (1) of the Companies Act, 2013 for the business activities carried
out by the Company, Thus, reporting under Clause 3(vi) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company.

(vii) In respect of statutory dues:

The Company does not have any liability in respect of Service tax, Duty of
excise, Sales tax and Value added tax during the year since effective l July
2017, these statutory dues has been subsumed into Goods and Services Tax
("GSr").

The amounts deducted / accrued in the books of account in respect of
undisputed statutory dues including GST, Provident Fund, Employees'State
Insurance, Income-Tax, Cess and other statutory dues have been regularly
deposited by the Company with the appropriate authorities and there are no
statutory dues as on the last day of the financial year that are more than six
months from the date, they became payable;

There are no statutory dues relating to GST, Provident Fund, Employees State
Insurance, Income-Tax, Sales Tax, Service Tax, Duty of Customs, Value
Added Tax or Cess or other statutory dues which have not been deposited on
account of any dispute .

(a)

(b)

(viii) Accordlng to the information and explanations given
on the procedures carried out during the course of
across any transactions not recorded in the books
surrendered or disclosed as income during the year

by the management and based
our audit, we have not come
of accounts which have been
in the tax assessments under

ffiffi
slu.h.10rsEy'

w\1,

(ix)
the Income Tax Act, 1961.

W



(a)

(b)

(x)
(a)

(b)

(xi)
(a)

(c)

(d)

(e)

(0

In our opinion and according to information and explanation given to us and

on the basis of our audit procedures, the company has not defaulted in

repayment of loans or other borrowings or in the payment of interest thereon

to any lender.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given t0 us

and on the basis of our audit procedures, we report that the company has not

been declared wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or

government or any government authority'

In our opinion and according to the information and explanation available with

us, the term loans have been applied for the purpose for which the loans were

ta ken .

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us

and on the basis of our audit procedures, we report that no funds raised for

short term purposes have been utilized for long term purposes'

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of

our audit procedures, we report that the company does not have any

subsidiaries, associates or joint ventures and hence reporting under clause

3(ix)(e) is not applicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of

our audit procedures, we report that the company does not have any

subsidiaries, associates or joint ventures and hence reporting under clause

3( ix) (f) is not applicable.

InouropinionandaccordingtotheinformationandexplanationsgiventoUs
and on the basis of our audit procedures, we report that the company has not

raised moneys by way of initial public offer or further public offer (including

debtinStruments)duringtheyearandhencereportingunderclause3(x)(a)
of the Order is not aPPlicable.

Inouropinionandaccordlngtotheinformationandexplanationsgiventous
and on the basis of our audit procedures, we repoft that the company has not

made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares or convertible

debentures (fully or partly or optionally) and hence reporting under clause

3(x)(b) of the Order is not applicable.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us

andonthebasisofourauditprocedures,wereportthatnofraudbythe
Company and fraud on the Company has been noticed or reported during the

yea r.



(b) In our opinion no report under sub-section (12) of section 143 of the

CompaniesActhasbeenfiledbytheauditorsinFormADT-4asprescr|bed
under rule 13 of companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the central

Government, during the year and upto the date of this report'

(c)InouropinionandaccordingtotheinformationandexplanationsgiventoUs
and on the basis of our audit procedures, we report that, no whistle-blower

complaints were received during the year, by the company'

(xii) The company is not a Nidhi company and hence reporting under clause 3 (xii) of

the Order is not aPPlicable.

(xiii) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations and records made

available to us by the company and audit procedures performed by us, all

transactions with related parties are in compliance with section 177 & 188 of the

CompaniesAct,2013.Thedetailsoftransactionsduringtheyearhavebeen
disclosed in the Ftnancial Statements as required by the applicable accounting

standards. Refer Note no. 33 to the Financial Statements'

(xiv)
(a)InoUropinionandbasedonourexamination,theCompanyhasaninternal

audit system commensurate with the size and nature of its business'

(b) we have considered, the internal audit report issued till date, for the period

under a udit,
(xv) According to the information and explanations given to us, in our opinion, during the

year the company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with its Directors

orpersonsconnectedwithitsdirectors.Henceprovisionsofsectionl92oFthe
CompaniesAct,20l3arenotapplicableandhencereportingunderthisclauseisnot
applicable.

(xvi)
(a) TheCompanyisnotrequiredtoberegisteredundersection45-IAofthe

Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934. Hence, reporting under clause 3(xvi)(a) and

(b) of the Order is not aPPlicable.

The Company ls not a Core Investment Company (CIC) as deflned in the

regulations made by the Reserve Bank of India' Accordingly, clause 3(xvi)(c)

of the Order is not aPPlicable.

According to the information and explanations provided to us during the

course of audit, the Group does not have any CICs'

(b)

(c)

(xvii) The
th at

Company has not incurred anY cash

date and the immediately preceding
losses during the financial year ended on

tnu"rrurm

,w w



(xviii) There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors of the company during the

yearandaccordinglyre-portingunderclause3(xviii)oftheorderisnotapplicable.

(xix) According to information and explanations given to us and on the basis of the

financialratios,ageingandexpecteddatesofrealizationoffinancialassetsand
payment of financial liabilities, other information accompanylng the financial

statements and our knowledge of the Board of Directors and Management plans and

based on our examination of the evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing has

cometoourattention,whichcausesustobelievethatanymaterialuncertainty
exists as on the date of the audit report indicating that Company is not capable of

meetingitsliabilitiesexiStingatthedateofbalancesheetasandwhentheyfalIdue
within a period of one year from the balance sheet date' We' however' state that

thisisnotanassuranceaStothefutureviabilityoftheCompany.-Wefurtherstate
thatourreportingisbasedonthefactsuptothedateoftheauditrepoftandwe
neithergiveanyguaranteenoranyassurancethatallliabilitiesfallingduewithina
periodofoneyearfromthebalancesheetdate,WillgetdischargedbytheCompany
as and when theY fall due'

(xx)Inouropinionandaccordingtotheinformationandexplanationsgiventous,there
is no unspent amount undei sub-section (5) of section 135 and sub-section (6) of

section 135 pursuant of the Act. Accordingly, repofting under clauses 3(xx)(a) and

3(xx)(b) of the Order are not applicable'

(xxl) The company does not have any subsidiary or associate concerns and hence

reporting under Clause 3(xxi) of the Order is not applicable'

For Ramesh M. Sheth & Associates
Chartered Accountants

ICAI Firm Registration No. 111883W

Place: Mumbai
oate| 23/0912022
uDIN: 221O1598AVKLFW3389

l)t,t#-
Ylw"'-
>(t"nurR. sheth)

( Partner)
(MembershiP No.1O1598)



Annexure - B to the Auditor's RePort

Report on the Internal Financial Controls of Financial Statements under Clause
(i) of sub-section 3 of the section 143 of the companies Act, 2013 ("the Act")

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Fasttrack Housing

Finance Limited ("the company") as of 31 March 2022 tn conjunction with our audit of the

standalone financial statemenfs of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial controls

The company's management is responsible for establishment and maintaining internal

financial controls based in the internai control over flnancial reporting criteria establishment

by the company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the

Guidance Note on audit of t-nternal Financial Controls over Financial Repofting issued by

the Institute of chartered Accountants of India ('IcAI',)' These responsibilities include the

design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were

op.riting effectively for ensuring the orderly and efflclent conduct of its business, including

adherenie to company's polici-es, the saieguarding of its assets, the prevention and

detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy ind completeness of the accounting records,

and the timely preparation of reliable flnancial information, as required under the

Companies Act, 2013.

Auditors' ResPonsibility

our responsibility ls to express an opinion on the company's internal financial controls over

flnancial reporting based on our audit. we conducted our audit in accordance with the

Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial controls over Financial Reporting (the

"Guidance Note,,) and the standards on Auditing, issued by ICAI and deemed to be

prescribed under section 143(10) of the Companiei Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to

an audit of internal rinarrciat'controls, both applicable to an audit of Internal Flnancial

controls and, both issued by the Institute of chartered Accountants of India' Those

Standards and the Gutdance irlote requlre that we comply with ethical requirements and

ptan anO perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate

internal financial controls over financial reporting was establishment and maintained and if

such controls operated effectively in all material respects'

our audlt involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of

the internal financial contrlols system over financial reporting and their operating

effectiveness. our audit of internal financial controls over financial repofting included

obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing

the risk that a material 
-weakness 

exists and testing and evaluating the design and

operating efFectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk, The procedure

selected"depends on the auditor's judgment, including the asses-sment of the risks of

material misstatement of the financiil statements, whether due to fraud or error.

Webelievethattheauditevidencewehaveobtainedissufficientand
a basis for our audit opinion on the company's internal financial

appropriate to Provide
controls systems over

financial reporting.

w



Meaning of Internal Financial controls over Financial Reporting

Acompany,Sinternalfinancialcontroloverfinancialreportingisaprocess.designedto
provide reasonabte urruruiJ" i.giiaing the reliability of financial reporting and the

preparation of financial ,tutarani, for 
-external prrporar in accordance with generally

accepted accounting priJp'ies. A .on1puny', internal financial control over financial

reporting inctudes tfrose poiicies and procedures that (1) pertaln to the maintenance of

records that, in ,."uronuli.-Outail, accurately .ana fiiriy' reflect the. transactions and

dispositions of the asseis'.i-in.' *rpuny;' (2) provide reasonable assurance that

transactions ur" ,.e.ord"6ir-n"i"itury to pbrmlt'pieparation of financial statements in

accordance with generally accepted accounting piinciples' and that,'receipts and

expenditures of tne compa'nVlr" 
-#ing 

made oniy i'n accordance with authorizations of

management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance

regarding prevention or ti;;l;deieition or unauthorized'acquisition, use, or disposition of

the company,s assets that co..',lrJ nur" a material effect on the financial statements.

InherentLimitationsoflnternalFinancialControlsoverFinancialReporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal controls over financial reporting' including

the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls' material

misstatement due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected' Also, projections of

any evaluation of the intlrnil financial controls over financial reporting to future periods

are subject to the risk ir.'r ui tr.r.-ini"rnal control over financial reporting may become

inadequate because or .r.lunga, ln conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the

policies or procedures may deteriorate'

Opinion

Inouropinion,theCompanyhas,inallmaterialrespects'anadequateinternalfinancial
controls system over tinJi.i!r ..epo.ting and such internal financial controls over financial

repofting were operatin j "ff"gt'gf 
y as- at 31 March' 2022 ' based on the.internal control

overreportingcriteriaestablishedbytheCompanyconsideringtheessentialcomponents
of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Inteinal Financial Controls Over

Financial Reporting issued by the ICAI'

Placer Mumbai
Datet 23/0912022
UDIN : 221O1598AVKLFW3389

For Ramesh M. Sheth & Associates
Chartered Accountants

Registration No. 111883W

(Mehul R' Sheth)
( Partner)

ICAI Firm

(MembershiP No.1O1598)









Fasttrack Housing Finance Limited 
Significant accounting policies for the year ended 31 March 2022 

2.4 

Corporate Information 

Fasttrack Housing Finance Limited (‘Fasttrack’ or the Company) was incorporated on December 20, 
200 5 as a private limited company. It was subsequently converted into a public limited company on 
August 23, 2016. 

The Company has been conceptualized with the objective of making finance available to individuals 
who wish to own a house. Company has a vision to contribute to the Indian economy by bringing no 

income and low income profiles in the main stream of Society by helping them, to build their own 
House. 

Basis of preparation of Financial Statements 

(i) 

(ii) 

(iii) 

(iv) 

Statement of Compliance 

The accompanying financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with 
Indian Accounting Standard (Ind AS) specified under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the 
Act”) read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standard) Rules, 2015(as amended from time 

to time) and in accordance with the regulation of National Housing Bank (“NHB”). The Company 

has followed the same accounting policies in preparation of the financial statements as those 
followed in preparation of the annual financial statements as at and for the year ended 31 March 
2021. 

The Financial Statements have been prepared in accordance with information and disclosures 
mandated by Schedule Ill of the Act, applicable Ind AS and regulation of NHB. 

Functional and presentation currency 

The Company’s presentation and functional currency is Indian Rupees (2 or INR). All amounts 
appearing in the financial statements are rounded to the nearest lakhs except where otherwise 
indicated. 

Basis of measurement 

The Company maintains accounts on accrual basis, except for the items disclosed separately in 
notes below. The financial statements has been prepared on a historical cost basis except for 
followings: 

e Certain financial assets and liabilities which are measured at fair value; 

e Defined benefit plans measured at fair value: and 

e Repossessed assets are measured at fair value less cost to sell or carrying amount 

whichever is lower. 

Use of estimates and judgements 

The presentation of financial statements in accordance with Ind AS requires management to use 

of certain critical accounting estimates and assumptions. It also requires management to exercise 
judgment in the process of applying accounting policies. Actual result could differ from those 

estimates. 

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis and changes are made 
as management becomes aware of changes in the circumstances surrounding the estimates. They 
are based on historical experience, Industry practice and other factors, including expectation of 

future events that may have a financial impact on the Company and that are believed to be 
reasonable under circumstances. Revision to accounting estimates are recognised in the financial 

statements in the period in which the estimate is revised. 

Wherever possible, detailed information about each of the critical estimates and judgements is 

included in relevant notes. 
The areas involving critical estimates or judgments are: 

e Estimation of defined benefit obligation; 

e Impairment of financial assets such as loans, trade receivables etc; 

e Estimation of tax expenses and liability; and 

e Financials assets measured at amortised cost (Loans). 

   



Fasttrack Housing Finance Limited 
Significant accounting policies for the year ended 31 March 2022(Contd.) 

2.2 Recognition of income 

(i) The effective interest rate method 

Under Ind AS 109 interest income is recorded using the effective interest rate (EIR) method for all 
financial instruments measured at amortised cost. The EIR is the rate that exactly discounts 
estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of the financial instrument or, when 
appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying amount of the financial asset. 

The EIR (and therefore, the amortised cost of the asset) is calculated by taking into account any 

discount or premium on acquisition, fees and costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The Company 

recognises interest income using a rate of return that represents the best estimate of a constant 
rate of return over the expected life of the loan. Hence, it recognises the effect of potentially 
different interest rates charged at various stages, and other characteristics of the product life cycle 

{including prepayments, penalty interest and charges). 

(ii) Interest Income 
The Company calculates interest income by applying the EIR to the gross carrying amount of 
financial assets other than credit-impaired assets and financial assets measured at FVTPL. 

When a financial asset becomes credit-impaired and is, therefore, regarded as ‘Stage 3’, the 
Company calculates interest income by applying the effective interest rate to the amortised cost 

net of provisions of the financial asset. If the financial assets are no longer credit-impaired, the 
Company reverts to calculating interest income on a gross basis. 

(iii) Other income 
(a) Other financial services include late payment interest, Cheque bounce charges and Other 

Charges from customers are accounted on receipt basis due to uncertainty of its realisation. 

(b) All other incomes are accounted on accrual basis. 

2.3 Financial Instruments 
A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial 

liability or equity instrument of another entity. 

I. Financial Assets 
(a) Recognition and initial measurement 

Trade receivables are initially recognised when they are originated. All other financial 
assets are initially recognised when the Company becomes a party to the contractual 
provisions of the instrument. All financial assets other than those measured subsequently 
at fair value through Profit or Loss, are recognised initially at fair value plus transaction 
cost that are attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset. 

(b) Classification and subsequent measurement 
Financial assets are subsequently measured in their entirety at amortised cost or fair value 

depending on the classification of respective financial assets. Based on the business model 
for managing the financial assets and the contractual cash flow characteristic of the 
financial assets, the Company classifies financial assets as subsequently measured at 

amortised cost, fair value thorough OCI or fair value through profit or loss. 

» Debt instruments at amortised cost 
A ‘debt instrument’ is measured at amortised cost if both the following conditions are met: 
The assets are held within business model whose objective is: 

- To hold assets for collecting contractual cash flows; and 
- Contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely 

consisting of Payments of Principle and Interest (SPPI) on the principle outstanding. 

After initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised 
”~€ost using the effective interest rate (EIR) method. Amortised cost is calculated by taking 

\ intoxaccount any discount or premium and fees or costs that are integral part of EIR. The 

_ EIR’amortisation is included in finance income in the statement of Profit or Loss. The losses 
arising ‘from impairment are recognised in statement of profit or loss. 

 



Fasttrack Housing Finance Limited 
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~ Debt instruments at fair value through Other Comprehensive Income (FVOCI) 

A ‘debt instrument’ is measured at fair value through Other Comprehensive Income if both 
the following conditions are met: 

The assets is held within business model whose objective is achieved by both 

Collecting contractual cash flows and selling financial assets; and 

- Contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are SPPI 
on the principle outstanding. 

After initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured at fair value. 

Interest income under EIR method and impairment losses are recognised in statement of 
profit or loss. Other net gain or losses are recognised as OCI. 

> Debt instruments at fair value through Profit or Loss (FVTPL) 

FVTPL is residual category for debt instruments. Any debt instrument, which does not meet 
the criteria for categorization at amortised cost or as FVTOCI, is classified as FVTPL. After 

initial measurement, any fair value changes including any interest income, impairment 
losses and other net gains and losses are recognised in Statement of Profit or Loss. 

(c) De-recognition 

A financial asset is primarily derecognised when the right to receive cash flow from assets 
have expired. On de-recognition, any gain or loss on debt instruments are recognised in the 
Statement of Profit or Loss, except for financial assets at FVTOCI, where on de-recognition 
accumulated gain or losses in OCI is re-classified to profit or loss. 

The Company transfers loans through assignment transactions. In accordance with the Ind 
AS 109, on derecognition of a financial asset under assignment transactions, the 

difference between the carrying amount and the consideration received shall be 
recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss. 

(d) Impairment of financial assets 
In accordance with Ind AS-109, the Company applies Expected Credit Loss (‘ECL’) model for 
measurement and recognition of impairment loss on the financial assets measured at 
amortised cost and debt instruments measured at FVTOCI. However, the Company has 
maintained the minimum provision requirement as per NHB regulations. 

Loss allowances on trade receivables are measured following ‘simplified approach’ at an 
amount equal to the lifetime ECL at each reporting date. In respect of other financial assets 
such as debt securities, the loss allowances are measured at 12 month ECL only if there is 
no significant deterioration in the credit risk since initial recognition of the assets. 

I. Financial Liabilities 

Recognition and initial measurement 

(a) Financial liabilities are initially recognised when the Company becomes a party to the 

contractual provisions of the instrument. Financial liabilities, other than those measured at 

fair value through Profit or Loss, are recognised initially at fair value plus transaction cost 

that are attributable to the acquisition of the financial liability. 

(b) Classification and subsequent measurement 
Subsequent measurement is determined with reference to the classification of the 
respective financial liabilities. 

e Financial liabilities at FVTPL 
A financial liability is classified as FVTPL if it is classified as held-for-trading or is designated 
as such on initial recognition. Financial liabilities at FVTPL are measured at fair value and 
charges therein, including any interest expenses, are recognised in Statement of Profit or 
‘Loss.    
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2.4 

2.5 

2.6 

e Financial liabilities at amortised cost 

After initial recognition, financial liabilities other than those which are classified as FVTPL 
are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the EIR method. 
Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium and fees or 
costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The amortisation done using the EIR method is 
included as finance cost in Statement of Profit or Loss 

(c) De-recognition 
A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under liability is discharged or 

cancelled or expires. When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the 
same lender on substantially different terms of an existing liability are substantially 

modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as the de-recognition of original 

liability and recognition of a new liability. The difference in the respective carrying amounts 
is recognised of in the Statement of Profit or Loss. 

Property, Plant and Equipment (PPE) & Depreciation 
PPE are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation thereon. The cost of PPE comprises purchase 
price and any attributable cost of bringing the asset to its working condition for its intended use. The 
Company provides pro-rata depreciation from the date on which asset is acquired/ put to use. In 

respect of assets sold, pro-rata depreciation is provided up to the date on which the asset is sold. Gains 

/ Losses arising from sale of asset are measured at the difference between the net disposal value and 

the carrying amount of the assets and are recognised in the statement of profit and loss when the asset 
is sold. On all assets, except as mentioned below, depreciation has been provided using the useful life 

as specified in Schedule II to the Act by Written Down Value method: 

Cost of Leasehold improvements is amortized over the period of the lease. 

Intangible Assets and Amortization 
Expenses incurred on intangible assets having enduring benefits are capitalized and amortized on 
Straight Line Method (SLM) basis over a period of 10 years. 

Taxation 

Tax expense comprises current tax (i.e. amount of tax for the period determined in accordance with 
the income-tax law) and deferred tax charge or credit (reflecting the tax effect of timing differences 
between accounting income and taxable income for the period). 

Current Tax 
Provision for current tax is made on the basis of estimated taxable income for the accounting year in 

accordance with the Income Tax Act, 1961. Current tax assets and liabilities are measured at the 
amount expected to be recovered from, or paid to, the taxation authorities. Management periodically 

evaluates positions taken in the tax returns with respect to situation in which applicable tax regulations 
are subject to interpretation and establishes provisions were appropriate. 
Current tax assets and liabilities are offset where the entity has legally enforceable right to offset and 
intends either to settle on net basis, or to realise the assets and settle the liability simultaneously. 

Deferred Tax 
Deferred tax is the tax expected to be payable or recoverable on differences between the carrying 
values of assets and liabilities in the financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the 
computation of the taxable profit and is accounted for using the balance sheet liability model. Deferred 
tax liabilities are generally recognised for all the taxable temporary differences. In contrast, deferred 
tax assets are only recognised to the extent that is probable that future taxable profits will be 
available against which the temporary differences can be utilised. 

The carrying amount of deferred income tax assets is reviewed at each balance sheet date and reduced 

to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all 
or part of the deferred income tax asset to be utilized. Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are 
measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the year when the asset is realized or the 

liabitity. is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted 
/at the balance:sheet date. 
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28.8 

Deferred tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or loss 

{either in other comprehensive income or in equity). Deferred tax items are recognised in correlation 
to the underlying transaction either in OCI or directly in equity. 

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a legally enforceable right exists to set off 
current tax assets against current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same taxable 

entity and the same taxation authority. 

Employee Benefits 

(i) Defined Contribution Plans 

The Company’s contribution to provident fund and employee state insurance scheme is considered as 
defined contribution plans and is charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss in the period in which 

they occur. The Company have no other obligation when the contribution has been paid. 

(ii) Defined benefit plans 

The liability or asset recognised in the balance sheet in respect of defined benefit gratuity plans is the 

present value of the defined benefit obligation at the end of the reporting period less the fair value of 
plan assets. The defined benefit obligation is calculated annually by actuaries using the projected unit 
credit method. The present value of the defined benefit obligation denominated in INR is determined 
by discounting the estimated future cash outflows by reference to market yields at the end of the 
reporting period on government bonds that have terms approximating to the terms of the related 

obligation. The net interest cost is calculated by applying the discount rate to the net balance of the 
defined benefit obligation and the fair value of plan assets. This cost is included in employee benefit 
expense in the Statement of Profit and Loss. Remeasurements of gains and losses arising from 

experience adjustments and changes in actuarial assumptions are recognised in the period in which 

they occur, directly in other comprehensive income. They are included in retained earnings in the 
statement of changes in equity and in the balance sheet. Changes in the present value of the defined 
benefit obligation resulting from plan amendments or curtailments are recognised immediately in 
profit or loss as past service cost. 

(iii) Other long-term employee benefit obligations 

The liabilities for earned leave and sick leave are not expected to be settled wholly within 12 months 
after the end of the period in which the employees render the related service. They are therefore 
measured as the present value of expected future payments to be made in respect of services provided 

by employees up to the end of the reporting period using the projected unit credit method. The 
benefits are discounted using the market yields at the end of the reporting period that have terms 
approximating to the terms of the related obligation. Remeasurements as a result of experience 

adjustments and changes in actuarial assumptions are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss. 

The obligations are presented as current liabilities in the balance sheet if the entity does not have an 
unconditional right to defer settlement for at least twelve months after the reporting period, 
regardless of when the actual settlement is expected to occur. 

(iv) Other Long Term / Short term employee benefit obligation 

The Company has provided for earned leave benefits payable to its employees and is in the nature of 

Defined Benefit Plan. The Liability recognized in the balance sheet in respect of Leave Encashment is 
the present value of defined benefit obligation at the balance sheet date together with the 
adjustments for 

unrecognized actuarial gain or losses and the past service costs. The defined benefit obligation is 

calculated at or near the balance sheet date by an independent actuary using the projected unit credit 
method. Actuarial gains and losses comprise experience adjustment and the effects of changes in 
actuarial assumptions are recognised immediately in the Statement of Profit and Loss account. 
Remeasurements gains and losses arising from experience adjustments and changes in actuarial 

assumptions, are recognised in the year in which they occur, directly in other comprehensive income. 

They are included in retained earnings in the statement of changes in equity and in the Balance Sheet. 
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2.7 

2.8 

2.9 

2.11 

Provisions 

Provisions for legal claims are recognised when the Company has a present legal or constructive 
obligation as a result of past events, it is probable that an outflow of resources will be required to 
settle the obligation and the amount can be reliably estimated. Provisions are not recognised for future 
operating losses. 

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the likelihood that an outflow will be required in 
settlement is determined by considering the class of obligations as a whole. A provision is recognised 
even if the likelihood of an outflow with respect to any one item included in the same class of 
obligations may be small. 

Provisions are measured at the present value of management’s best estimate of the expenditure 

required to settle the present obligation at the end of the reporting period. The discount rate used to 

determine the present value is a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the time 

value of money and the risks specific to the liability. The increase in the provision due to the passage 
of time is recognised as finance cost. 

Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets 

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events whose existence will be 
confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events beyond the 

control of the Company or a present obligation that is not recognized because it is probable that an 
outflow of resources will not be required to settle the obligation. However, if the possibility of outflow 
of resources, arising out of present obligation, is remote, it is not even disclosed as contingent liability. 

A contingent liability also arises in extremely rare cases where there is a liability that cannot be 

recognized because it cannot be measured reliably. The Company does not recognize a contingent 
liability but discloses its existence in the notes to financial statements. A Contingent asset is not 

recognized in financial statements, however, the same is disclosed where an inflow of economic 

benefit is probable. 

Impairment of Non - Financial Assets 
The Company assesses at each balance sheet date whether there is any indication that a non financial 
asset may be impaired. If any such indication exists, the Company estimates the recoverable amount 
of the non financial asset. If such recoverable amount of the non financial asset or the recoverable 

amount of the cash generating unit which the non financial asset belongs to, is less than its carrying 
amount, the carrying amount is reduced to its recoverable amount. The reduction is treated as an 
impairment loss and is recognized in the statement of profit and loss. If at the balance sheet date 

there is an indication that a previously assessed impairment loss no longer exists, the recoverable 
amount is reassessed and the non financial asset is reflected at the recoverable amount subject to a 
maximum of depreciable historical cost. 

Cash and Cash Equivalents 

Cash and cash equivalents in the balance sheet comprises cash at bank and on hand and short -term 
deposits with an original maturity of three months or less, which are subject to an insignificant risk of 
change in value. 

Earnings Per Share 

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the year attributable to 
equity shareholders (after deducting attributable taxes) by the weighted average number of equity 
shares outstanding during the year. 

For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit or loss for the year attributable 
to equity shareholders and the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the year are 

adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares. 

 



Fasttrack Housing Finance Limited 

Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2022 

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

   

  

   
    

% in Lakhs 
. As at As at As at 

Particulars Note No. 
icula ore NO March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021 April 1, 2020 

1. ASSETS 

A. Financial assets 

Cash and cash equivalents 3 76.54 257.52 127.13 

Receivables 4 

(a) Trade Receivables 849.35 1,059.44 1,049.28 

(b) Other Receivables 177.03 241.21 217.97 

Loans o 9,418.30 11,262.99 412,386.82 

Other financial assets 6 108.14 137.66 148.17 

Total Financial Assets (A) 10,629.36 12,958.82 13,923.37 

B. Non-Financial assets 

Current Tax Assets (Net) 7 34.10 25.66 58.20 

Deferred tax assets (net) 8 64.99 - - 

Investment Property 9 1,043.20 1,043.20 1,036.81 

Property, plant and equipment 10 96.38 131.53 185.09 

Other intangible assets 11 137.40 171.75 206.10 

Other non-financial assets 42 25.86 23.66 15.44 

Total Non-Financial Assets (B) 1,401.93 1,395.80 1,501.64 

Total Assets (A+B) 12,031.29 14,354.62 15,425.01 

ll, LIABILITIES AND EQUITY 

LIABILITIES 

A. Financial Liabilities 

Trade Payables 1 

(i), total outstanding dues of micro enterprises 

and small enterprises 

(ii) total outstanding dues of creditors other than 10.64 6.92 202 

micro enterprises and small enterprises 

Borrowings . 14 5,730.00 7,760.00 8,930.00 

Other financial liabilities 15 686.97 997.52 1,036.84 

Total Financial Liabilities (A) 6,427.61 8,764.44 9,969.66 

B. Non-Financial Liabilities 

Provisions 16 13.86 9.68 411.14 

Deferred tax liabilities (Net) 8 : 16.40 16.26 

Other non-financial liabilities 17 0 32 59.04 67.94 

Totai Non-Financial Liabilities (B) 113.18 85.62 95.34 

Total Liabilities 6,540.79 8,850.06 10,065.00 

C. EQUITY 

Equity Share Capital 18 62.62 62.62 62.62 

Other Equity 19 5,427.88 5,441.94 5,297.39 

Total Equity (C) 5,490.50 5,504.56 5,360.01 

Total Liabilities and Equity (A+B+C) 12,031.29 14,354.62 15,425.01 

Significant accounting policies 1 to 2 

Notes forming part of the Financial Statements 3 to 80 
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Fasttrack Housing Finance Limited 
Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended March 31,2022 

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

= in Lakhs 

Particulars Note Year ended Year ended 
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021 

I. Income 

Revenue from operations 

Interest Income 20 1,407.61 1,615.51 

Other financial services 21 57.10 22.61 

Total revenue from operations 1,464.71 1,638.12 

Other Income 22 125.89 229.49 

Total income (I) 1,590.60 1,867.61 

ll. Expenses 

Finance costs 23 684.00 903.07 

Impairment on financial instruments 24 349.47 - 

Employee benefit expense 25 310.22 282.77 

Depreciation and amortisation expense 26 71.26 87.91 

Other expenses ot 201.49 411.31 

Total expenses (Il) 1,616.45 1,685.06 

Ill. (Loss)/Profit before Tax ( I-Il) (25.85) 182.55 

IV. Tax expense 

Current tax 28 71.00 42.93 

Deferred tax 8 (81.75) (1.14) 

Earlier years adjustments 0.03 - 

Total tax expense (IV) (10.72) 41.79 

V. Net (Loss)/Profit After Tax (IlI-IV) (15.13), 140.76 

Vi. Other comprehensive income 

Items that will not be reclassified to profit and loss 

Remeasurement gain/(loss) on of net defined benefit plans 29 1.43 5.07 

Deferred tax on above 8 (0.36) (1.28) 

Other Comprehensive Income 1.07 349 

Total comprehensive income for the year (V+VI) (14.06) 144.55 

Earnings per equity share 

Basic (in 2) 30 (2.42) 22.48 

Diluted (in 2) 30 (2.42) 22.48 

Significant accounting policies 1 to 2 

Notes forming part of the Financial Statements 3 to 80 
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Fasttrack Housing Finance Limited 

Statement of cash flows for the year ended 31st March 2022 

2 in Lakhs   

Particulars For the year ended 

31st March 2022 

For the year ended 

31st March 2021 
  

I. Cash flow from operating activities 

(Loss)/Profit before tax (25.85) 182.59 

Adjustments to reconcile profit before tax to net cash flows: 

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

Depreciation, amortisation and impairment 71.26 87.91 

Impairment on financial instruments 349.47 35.79 

Staff gratuity and leave encashment expenses 7.68 5.48 

Bad debts 84.48 247.75 

Operating profit before working capital changes 487.04 559.48 

Adjustments in working capital: 

(Increase)/Decrease in Loans 1,410.74 834.29 

(Increase)/ Decrease in receivables 274.27 (33.40) 

(Increase)/Decrease in Other financial assets 29.52 10.51 

(Increase)/ Decrease in Other non-financial assets (2.20) (8.22) 

Increase/ (Decrease) in Trade payables 3.12 4.10 

Increase/ (Decrease) in Other financial liabilities (310.58) (40.97) 

Increase/ (Decrease) in Provisions (2.07) (1.87) 

Increase/ (Decrease) in Other non-financial liabilities 39.78 (6.75) 

Cash generated from operation 1,930.22 1,317.17 

Income tax paid (net) (79.44) (10.39) 

Net cash flow from / (used in) operating activities (I) 1,850.78 1,306.78 

1. Cash flow from investing activities 

Purchase of Property, Plant and Equipment (1.76) 

Addition in long term investment = (6.39) 

Net cash flow from / (used in) investing activities (Il) (1.76) (6.39) 

lll. Cash flow from financing activities 

Repayments of Borrowings (net) (2,030.00) (1,170.00) 

Net cash flow from / (used in) financing activities (III) (2,030.00) (1,170.00) 

IV, Net increase in cash and cash equivalents during the year (I + Il + Ill) (180.98) 130.39 

V. Cash and cash equivalent at the beginning of the year 25/52 127.13 

Total cash and cash equivalent at the beginning of the year (V) 76.54 257.52 

Cash and cash equivalents 

Cash in hand 3.54 2.86 

Balances with banks 73.00 254.66 

Cash and cash equivalent at the end of the year (IV + V) 76.54 257.52 
  

Notes : 

1. Statement of cash flow has been prepared under the indirect method as set out in the Ind AS 7 "Statement of cash flow” as 

specified in Companies (Indian Accounting ' Standards) Rules, 2015. 

2. Figures in brackets represent outflows. 

Significant accounting policies 1 to2 

Notes forming part of the Financial Statements 3 to 80 
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Fasttrack Housing Finance Limited 

Statement of Change in Equity for the year ended March 31,2022 

A. Equity Share Capital   

  

  

Particulars Numbers = in Lakhs 

As at April 01, 2020 6,26,249 62.62 

Shares issued during the year * - 

As at March 31, 2021 6,26,249 62.62 

Shares issued during the year - - 

As at March 31, 2022 6,26,249 62.62 
  

B. Other Equity 

  

  

  

  

  

= in Lakhs 

Reserves and Surplus Other 

Particulars Securities Premium Special Retained Earnings Comprehensive Total 
reserve* Income 

Balance as at April 01, 2020 4,884.56 55.27 357.56 - 5,297.39 

Profit for the year 140.76 3.79 144.55 

Addition / appropriation during 12.75 (12.75) 

the year 

Balance as at March 31, 2021 4,884.56 68.02 485.57 3.79 5,441.94 

Profit for the year (15.13) 1.07 (14.06) 

Addition / appropriation durin 53.18 

the year poe ° (5.18) 

Balance as at March 31, 2022 4,884.56 121.20 417.26 4.86 5,427.88 
  

* Reserve Fund U/S 29C of NHB Act, 1987 (refer note No. 41) 

  

As per our report of even date 

For Ramesh M. Sheth & Associates 

Chartered Accountants 

Firm Registration No.111883W 
een 

Partner 

Membership No. 101598 
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Date: September 23, 2022 

For and on behalf of 

Fasttrack Housing Finance Limited 

    ff ” udhir Valia 

Director 

(DIN : 00005561) 

Meta 
Paras Mehta 

Director 

(DIN : 00007639) 

 



Fasttrack Housing Finance Limited 

Notes forming part of financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022 

3 Cash And Cash Equivalents 

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

2 in Lakhs 

Particulars 
As at As at As at 

March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021 April 1, 2020 

Cash on hand 3.54 2.86 3.10 

Balances with banks: 

- In Current Accounts 73.00 254.66 124.03 

Total 76.54 257.52 127.13 

Receivables 

= in Lakhs 

. As at As at As at 

Particulars March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021 April 1, 2020 
Trade receivables: 

Unsecured considered good 1,038.30 1,059.44 1,049.28 

Less : Impairment allowances (188.95) - - 

Total trade receivables 849.35 1,059.44 1,049.28 

Other receivables: 

Unsecured considered good 217.94 241.21 21797 

Less : Impairment allowances (40.91) - . 

Total other receivables 177.03 241.21 217.97 
  

No trade or other receivable are due from directors or other officers of the Company either severally or jointly with any 

other person. Nor any trade or other receivable are due from firms or private companies respectively in which any director 

is a partner, a director or a member. 

Receivable Ageing (gross) 

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

2 in Lakhs 

Particulars Less than 6 6 Months - 2 - 3 Years More than 3 Years Total 

Months 1 Year 

Undisputed - considered good 

As at March 31, 2022 33.92 757.17 465.15 1,256.24 

As at March 31, 2021 48.31 82.24 382.93 1,300.65 

As at April 1, 2020 14.91 787.17 382.93 1,267.25 

Loans 

2% in Lakhs 

Particulars As at As at As at 

March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021 April 1, 2020 

at amortised cost 

Term loans : 

Housing & other property loans to individuals 9,654.35 11,329.84 12,483.46 

Loan to Corporate Body 49.99 49.99 

Less : Impairment allowances (236.05) (116.84) (152.63) 

Net loans 9,418.30 11,262.99 12,380.82 

Secured by tangible assets 9,654.35 11,329.84 12,483.46 

Less : Impairment loss allowances (236.05) (116.84) (152.63) 

Net loans 9,418.30 11,213.00 12,330.83 

Loans in India: 

(i) Public sector - 

(ii) Others (Retail loans) 9,654.35 11,379.83 12,533.45 

Total loans 9,654.35 11,379.83 12,533.45 

Less : Impairment loss allowances (236.05) (116.84) (152.63) 

Net loa 9,418.30 11,262.99 12,380.82 
  

 



5 Loans (Contd...) 

Reconciliation of Expected Credit Loss is as below: 

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

% in Lakhs 

Particulars Stage | Stage Il Stage Ill Total 

Balance as at 1 Apri! 2020 31.19 6.24 115.20 152.63 

Additional/ (reversal) provision 41.06 (2.32) (34.53) (35.79) 

Balance as at 31 March 2021 32.25 3.92 80.67 116.84 

Additional/ (reversal) provision 106.93 16.16 (3.88) 119.21 

Balance as at 31 March 2022 139.16 20.08 76.79 236,05 

Company has classified the stages as below: 

Stage | : Credit risk has not increased significantly if principal or interest is due for 30 days or less. 

Stage ll : Credit risk has increased significantly if principal or interest is due from 31 days to 90 days. 

Stage Ill : Credit impaired if principal or interest is due for more than 90 days. 

Other financial assets 

2 in Lakhs 

As at As at As at 

Particulars March 31,2022 March 31, 2021 April 1, 2020 
Staff Loans 

Security Deposits - Unsecured 9.69 10.96 9.90 

Interest accrued but not due on advances (net of impairement 

provision) (refer note a below) 74.34 78.79 94.38 

Interest Accured and due (net of impairement provision) (refer 

note b below) 24.11 46.64 42.62 

Other financial assets - - 1.27 1.27 

Total 108.14 137.66 148.17 
  

a) Impairement provision on Interest accrued but not due on advances on 2 74.64 lakhs taken @ 0.40% = 0.30 Lakhs. 

b) Impairement provision on Interest accrued but & due on advances on % 24.21 lakhs taken @ 0.40% = 0.10 Lakhs. 

  

  

Current tax assets (Net) in Lakhs 

. As at As at As at 

parblculans March 31, 2022 ‘March 31, 2021 April 1, 2020 

Advance Tax (Net of Provision) 34.10 25.66 58.20 
  Total 34.10 25.66 58.20 

 



Fasttrack Housing Finance Limited 

Notes forming part of financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022 

8 Deferred tax assets (Net) 

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

Movement in deferred tax assets / (liabilities) 2 in Lakhs 

As at 31 March 2022 

| Net balance Recognised in Recognised Net balance Deferred tax Deferred 

Particulars 31 March 2021 profit or loss in OCl 31 March 2022 assets tax liabilities 

Deferred tax assets/(liabilities) 

Provision for employee benefits 2.37 1.48 (0.36) 3.49 3.49 

Property, Plant & Equipment, & Intangible 
assets (40.68) 10.17 - (30.51) : 30.51 

Impairment allowances on financial assets 23.75. 83.41 - 107.16 107.16 

Special reserve u/s 36(1)(viii) (1.84) (13.31) : (15.15) = 15.15 

Net Deferred tax assets / (liabilities) (16.40) 81.75 (0.36) 64.99 110.65 45.66 

2 in Lakhs 

As at 31 March 2021 

Particulars Net balance Recognised in Recognised in Net balance Deferred tax Deferred 

1 April 2020 profit or loss OCI 31 March 2021 assets tax liabilities 

Deferred tax assets/(liabilities) 

Provision for employee benefits 3.10 0.55 (1.28) 2.37 2.37 - 

Property, Plant & Equipment, & Intangible (57.94) 17.26 . (40.68) 40.68 
assets - 

impairment allowances on financial assets 38.58 (14.83) - 23.75 23.75 

Special reserve u/s 36(1)(viii) (1.84) - (1.84) = 1.84 

Net Deferred tax assets / (liabilities) (16.26) 1.14 (1.28) (16.40) 26.12 42.52 

9 Investment Property 

= in Lakhs 

| As at As at As at 

Particulars March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021 April 1, 2020 
Tav Housing 1,043.20 1,043.20 1,036.81 

Total 1,043.20 1,043.20 1,036.81 
  

10 & 1% Property, plant and equipment & Intangible assets (at cost) 

  

  

2 in Lakhs 

Total of Intangible 

Particulars Furniture & Office Computers Leasehold Vehicle Property, assets 

Fixtures Equipments Improvements Plant & (Business 

Equipment Acquisition) 

Gross block: 

At 1 April 2020 272.40 16.35 51.68 10.65 20.21 371.29 343.50 
Additions during the year - - - - = = = 

Disposals during the year - - = - 

At 31 March 2021 272.40 16.35 51.68 10.65 20.21 371.29 343.50 
  

  

Additions during the year - 1.76 - - : 1.76 - 

Disposals during the year - - = - - - - 

At 31 March 2022 272.40 18.11 51.68 10.65 202) 31305 343.50 

Accumulated Depreciation: 

  

  

At 1 April 2020 109.72 10.53 40.10 10.65 15.20 186.20 137.40 

Depreciation for the year 42.11 2.57 fo - 1557 53.56 34.35 

Reversal on disposal of assets - - - - 7 : ss 

At 31 March 2021 151.83 13.10 47.41 10.65 16.77 239.76 171.75 

Depreciation for the year 31.21 1.93 2.69 - 1.08 36.91 34.35 

Reversal on disposal of assets - = . - - - : 

At 31 March 2022 183.04 15.03 50.10 10.65 17.85 276.67 206.10 

Net book value: 

At 1 April 2020 

At 31 March 2021 

At 31 March 2022 

11.58 - 5.01 185.09 206.10 

4.27 : 3.44 131.53 171.75 

1.58 - 2.36 96,38 137.40 

  

 



Fasttrack Housing Finance Limited 

Notes forming part of financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022 

12 

13 

Other non - financial assets 

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

= in Lakhs 

; As at As at As at 

malt Ciceitairs March 31,2022 March 34, 2021 April 1, 2020 
Prepaid Expenses - Unsecured 2.88 2.87 2.85 

Balance with authority 12.52 10.91 3.78 

Advance to creditors 4.42 4.78 4.05 

Other Advances - Unsecured 6.04 5.10 4.76 

Total 25.86 23.66 15.44 

Trade Payable 

2 in Lakhs 

. As at As at As at 

Particulars March 31,2022 March 31, 2021 April 1, 2020 
Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small 

enterprises 

Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro 

enterprises and small enterprises 10.64 6.92 2.82 

Total 10.64 6.92 2.82 
  

The information as required to be disclosed under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 has been 

determined to the extent such parties have been identified on the basis of Information available with the Company. The 

amount of principal and interest outstanding during the year is given below. 

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

2 in Lakhs 

. As at As at As at 

Particulars March 31,2022. March 34, 2021 April 1, 2020 
a) Amount outstanding but not due as at year end - 

b) Amount due but unpaid as at the year end 

c) Amounts paid after appointed date during the year 

d) Amount of interest accrued and unpaid as at year end 

e) The amount of further interest due and payable even in 

the succeeding year - 

Total - - - 

Payable Ageing 

in Lakhs 

Particulars Less than 1 Year 1-2 Years 2 - 3 Years Total 

Undisputed Trade Payable - Others 

As at March 31, 2022 10.64 - - 10.64 

As at March 31, 2021 6.92 - 7 6.92 

As at April 1, 2020 2.82 - . 2.82 

Borrowings - at amortised cost 

2 in Lakhs 

. As at As at As at 

Particulars March 31,2022 March 31, 2021 April 1, 2020 
Unsecured term loan from related party 5,730.00 7,760.00 8,930.00 

Total 5,730.00 7,760.00 8,930.00 

Borrowings in India 5,730.00 7,760.00 8,930.00 

Borrowings outside India - - - 

Total 5,730.00 7,760.00 8,930.00 
  

 



Fasttrack Housing Finance Limited 

Notes forming part of financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022 

15 

16 

17 

18 

  

Other financial liabilities 

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

= in Lakhs 

. AS at As at As at 

pareteulars March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021 Apri! 1, 2020 
Interest accrued but not due on borrowings 626.59 886.21 916.61 

Employee benefit expenses payable 33.28 23.95 24.75 

Others 27.10 87.36 95.48 

Total 686.97 997.52 1,036.84 

Provisions 

in Lakhs 

. As at As at As at 

Particulars March 31,2022. March 31, 2021 April 1, 2020 
Provision for Employee Benefits 

Gratuity 6.32 4.53 6.06 

Leave encashment 7.54 5.15 5.08 

Total 13.86 9.68 11.14 

Other non-financial liabilities 

= in Lakhs 

As at As at As at 

Particulars March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021 April 1, 2020 

Statutory Dues 62.92 22.74 29.49 

Security deposit 36.40 36.80 38.45 

Total 99.32 59.54 67.94 

Equity share capital 

(a) Authorised share capital : 

Particulars No. of Shares 2 in Lakhs 

At 1 April 2020 7,50,000 75.00 

Add: Increased during the year - - 

At 31 March 2021 7,50,000 75.00 

Add: Increased during the year - - 

At 31 March 2022 7,50,000 75.00 

(b) Issued, subscribed and fully paid up capital : 

Particulars No. of Shares % in Lakhs 

At 1 April 2020 6,26,249 62.62 

Add: Increased during the year - : 

At 31 March 2021 6,26,249 62.62 

Add: Increased during the year - - 

At 31 March 2022 6,26,249 62.62 
  

(c) Terms/ rights attached to equity shares : 

The Company has only one class of equity shares having a par value of %10 per share. Each holder of an equity share is 

entitled to one vote per share on every resolution placed before the Company on the right to receive dividend. 

(d) Shareholder’s having more than 5% equity shareholding in the Company 

  

  

   

  

    

  

  

Particulars No. of shares % holding 

As at April 1 2020 

Suraksha Realty Limited (Holding Company) 5,87,150 93.76% 

As at March 31 2021 

‘S| ideep i stments and Finance Pvt Ltd (Holding Company) 3,82,685 61.11% 

Ms “Shradhi : alia 1,20,475 19.24% 

Khyati.Va 1,20,475 19.24% 

Ay at’ March 342022 
akshdeep |r ents and Finance Pvt Ltd (Holding Company) 3,82,685 61.11% 

Shiadhas:Watia 1,20,475 19.24% 
MexRhyateValia 1,20,475 19.24%  



  

Fasttrack Housing Finance Limited 

Notes forming part of financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022 

18 Equity share capital (Contd) 

(e) Details of Shares held by Promotors 
  

% Change during 

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

Particulars No. of Shares % Holding the year 

At 1 April 2020 

Sudhir Valia 1,306 0.21% 

At 31 March 2021 

Sudhir Valia 1,306 0.21% 

At 31 March 2022 

Sudhir Valia 1,306 0.21% 

Other Equity 

in Lakhs 

. As at As at As at 

Particulates March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021 April 1, 2020 

Security premium 4,884.56 4,884.56 4,884.56 

Retained earnings 417.26 485.57 357.56 

Statutory reserve (Special reserve) [Refer note 41] 121.20 68.02 55.27 

Other comprehensive income 4.86 3.79 - 

Total 5,427.88 5,441.94 5,297.39 

(a) Movement in reserves: 

% in Lakhs 

As at As at As at 

Particulars March 31,2022 ‘March 31, 2021 April 1, 2020 
Security premium 

Opening Balance 4,884.56 4,884.56 4,884.56 

Addition during the year on issuance of share capital : . - 

Closing balance 4,884.56 4,884.56 4,884.56 

Statutory reserve (Special reserve) 

Opening Balance 68.02 bos Book? 

Add : Transfer from retained earnings 53.18 12.75 - 

Closing balance 121.20 68.02 55.27 

Retained earnings 

Opening Balance 485.57 357.56 339.69 

Add : Net profit for the year (15.13) 140.76 17.87 

Less : Transfer to Statutory reserve (53.18) (12.75) - 

Closing balance 417.26 485.57 357.56 

Other comprehensive income 

Opening Balance 3.79 - 

Add : Other comprehensive income for the year 1.07 Bef9 - 

Closing balance 4.86 3.79 - 

Closing balance of other equity 5,427.88 5,441.94 5,297.39 
  

(b) Nature and purpose of reserves 

Securities premium 

Securities premium represents premium received on issue of shares. The amount is utilised in accordance with the 

provisions of the Companies Act, 2013. 

Retained earnings 

Retained earnings represents the amount of accumulated earnings of the Company. 

Statutory reserve (Special reserve) 

Statutory reserve maintained u/s 29C of the National Housing Bank Act, 1987 read with section 36(1)(viii) of Income Tax 

Act, 1961(refer Note No. 41) 
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23 

24 

25 

    

     

  

   

Interest Income - on financial assets at amortised cost 

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

2 in Lakhs 

Particulars Year ended Year ended 

31 March 2022 31 March 2021 

Interest on Loans 1,407.61 1,615.51 

Total 1,407.61 1,615.51 

Other financial services 

in Lakhs 

Particulars Year ended Year ended 

314 March 2022 31 March 2021 

Other income from operation 57.10 22.61 

Total 57.10 22.61 

Other income 

% in Lakhs 

; Year ended Year ended 

Particulars 34 March 2022 34 March 2021 
Rent Income 124.26 191.80 

Interest on Income Tax Refund 1.63 1.80 

Written-bank of excess impairement loss allowance 35.79 

Other income - 0.10 

Total 125.89 229.49 

Finance cost- on financial liabilities at amortised cost 

% in Lakhs 

/ Year ended Year ended 

Particulars 314 March 2022 314 March 2021 
Interest on borrowings 682.92 901.99 

Other charges 1.08 1.08 

Total 684.00 903.07 

Impairment on financial instruments 

2 in Lakhs 

Year ended Year ended 
Particulars 

Impairment loss allowances as per ECL method on: 

31 March 2022 31 March 2021 

- Loans and advances* 119.61 

- Receivables 229.86 

Total 349.47 - 
  

  

* The Company has made an additional impairment provision of = 127.34 Lakhs during the year ended March 31, 2022 

towards Covid-19 and loans on which one-time restructuring was implemented (March 31, 2021 : = 6.25 Lakh) 

Employee benefit expenses 

  

  

  

  
  

  

  

  

2 in Lakhs 

. Year ended Year ended 

Particulars 31 March 2022 31 March 2021 
Salaries and Bonus 281.85 250.72 

_ Contribution to Provident Fund and Other Funds 13.20 11.34 

Nga & Leave encashment (refer note 29) 9.11 10.55 

aff welfare expenses 6.07 10.16 

otal 310.23 282.77 

Depreciation and amortisation expenses 

2% in Lakhs 

. Year ended Year ended 

Particulars 31 March 2022 31 March 2021 
Depreciation on property plant and equipments 36.91 53.56 

Amortisation of intangible assets 34.35 34.35 

Total 71.26 87.91 
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29 

Income Tax recognised in profit or loss 

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

2 in Lakhs 

Particulars Year ended Year ended 

34 March 2022 31 March 2021 

Current tax 71.00 42.93 

Deferred tax (81.75) (1.14) 

Earlier years adjustments 0.03 - 

Total tax (10.72) 41.79 

Reconciliation of tax charges % in Lakhs 

panieniare Year ended Year ended 

31 March 2022 31 March 2021 

Accounting profit before tax (25.85) 182.55 

Income tax @ 25.17% (31 March 2021: 25.17%) (6.51) 45.94 

Standard deduction on rent income (4.22) (6.59) 

Others 0.01 2.44 

Total (10.72) 41.79 
  

Employee Benefits 

(a) Defined contribution plans 

The Company has recognized the following amounts in the statement of Profit and Loss which are included under 

contribution to funds 

  

  

% in Lakhs 

. Year ended Year ended 
Particulars 

31 March 2022 31 March 2021 

Employers contribution to Provident Fund 12.08 10.55 

Employers contribution to Employee State Insurance Scheme 1.12 0.79 
  

(a) Defined benefit plans 

Gratuity 

The Company has accounted liability in respect of gratuity obligation as on balance sheet date, as per the actuarial 

valuation required by Indian IND AS 19 on ‘Employee benefits’. 

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

|. Change in the Benefit Obligations: % in Lakhs 

Particulars 2021-22 2020-21 

Liability at the beginning of the year 4.53 6.06 

Current Service Cost 2:91 3.12 

Interest Cost 0.31 0.42 

Benefits Paid 

Actuarial Gains - Due to change in Financials Assumptions (0.33) 0.04 

Actuarial Losses - Due to Experience (1.10) (5.11) 

Liability at the end of the year 6.32 4.53 

ll. Fair Value of Plan Assets: = in Lakhs 

Particulars 2021-22 2020-21 

Fair Value of Plan Assets at the beginning of the year 

Interest income 

Contributions 

Return on plan assets 

Fair Value of Plan Assets at the end of the year 

lll. Actual Return on Plan Assets: % in Lakhs 

Particulars 2021-22 2020-21 
  

Expected Return on Plan Assets 

Actuarial loss on Plan Assets 

Actual Return on Plan Assets 
  

 



Fasttrack Housing Finance Limited 

Notes forming part of financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022 

29 Employee Benefits(Contd...) 

  

  

IV. Reconciliation of the Liability Recognised in the Balance Sheet: = in Lakhs 

Particulars 2021-22 2020-21 

Opening Net Liability 4.53 6.06 

Expense recognised in Profit or Loss 3.22 3.54 

Expense recognised in OCI (1.43) (5.07) 

Contribution by the Company 

Benefits paid by the Company / Insurance Companies 

Amount recognised in the Balance Sheet under “Long term Provision 6.32 4.53 

for Employee Benefits” = 6.28 lakhs (P.Y. = 4.50 lakhs) under 

“Short term Provision for Employee Benefits” 30.04 lakhs (P.Y. 70.03 

  

  

  

  

  

  

lakhs). 

V. Expense Recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss: 2% in Lakhs 

Particulars 2021-22 2020-21 

Current Service Cost 2.94 3.12 

Interest Cost 0.31 0.42 

Expense recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss 3.22 3.54 

Vl. Expense Recognised in the Statement of Other Comprehensive Income: 2 in Lakhs 

Particulars 2021-22 2020-21 

Actuarial (Gains)/Losses on Obligation For the Period (1.43) (5.07) 

Return on Plan Assets, Excluding Interest Income 

Net (Income)/Expense For the Period Recognized in Statement of 

  

  

  

oc (1.43) (5.07) 

VII. Investment Pattern: 

Investment for plan assets - Nil 

Vill. Principal Assumptions: 

Particulars 2021-22 2020-21 

Discount Rate 7.15% 6.85% 

Salary Escalation 5.00% 5.00% 

Attrition rate for all age group 2.00% 2.00% 

The estimate of future salary increase, considered in the actuarial valuation takes account of inflation, seniority, 

promotion and other relevant factors. 
  

  

  

IX. Sensitivity Analysis = in Lakhs 

Particulars 2021-22 2020-21 

Projected Benefit Obligation on Current Assumptions 

Delta Effect of +0.5% Change in Rate of Discounting (0.50) (0.38) 

Delta Effect of -0.5% Change in Rate of Discounting 0.55 0.42 

Delta Effect of 0.5% Change in Rate of Salary Increase 0.55 0.42 

Delta Effect of -0.5% Change in Rate of Salary Increase (0.48) (0.38) 

Delta Effect of +0.5% Change in Rate of Employee Turnover 0.02 0.01 

Delta Effect of -0.5% Change in Rate of Employee Turnover (0.02) (0.01) 
  

X. Maturity Analysis of the Benefit Payments: From the Fund 

Projected Benefits Payable in Future Years From the Date of Reporting 
  

  

Particulars Rs. In Lakhs % 

1st Following Year 0.04 0.20% 

2nd Following Year 0.07 0.30% 

3rd Following Year 0.15 0.60% 

4th Following Year 0.19 0.80% 

5th Following Year 0.23 1.00% 

Sum of Years 6 To 10 1.33 5.50% 

Sum of Years 11 and above 
  

 



Fasttrack Housing Finance Limited 

Notes forming part of financial statements for the year enced March 31, 2022 

30 Earnings per Share: 

  

  

2% in Lakhs 

Particul Year ended Year ended 

anhieutars 31 March 2022 31 March 2021 
(a) Net profit after tax attributable to equity share holders (15.13) 140.76 

(b) weighted average number of shares of = 10 each 

Number of equity shares at the beginning of the year 6,26,249 6,26,249 

shares issued during the year - - 

Weighted average number of equity shares at the end of the year 6,26,249 6,26,249 

Add : number of dilutive potential shares 

Weighted average number of dilutive equity shares at the end of the 

year 6,26,249 6,26,249 

Basic earnings per share of ( % 10 each ) (2.42) 22.48 

Diluted earnings per share of ( % 10 each ) (2.42) 22.48 
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31 Maturity analysis of assets and liabilities 

The table below shows an analysis of assets and liabilities analysed according to when they are expected to be recovered or settled. 

2 in Lakhs 
  

As at March 31, 2022 As at March 31, 2021 As at April 1, 2020 
  

  

  

  

  

Particulars Less than 12 Morethan 12 Lessthan12 Morethan12 Less than 12 More than 12 

months months months months months months 

Assets 

Financial Assets 

Cash and cash equivalents 76.54 257.52 * 127.13 

Receivables 

(a) Trade Receivables 849.35 1,059.44 - 1,049.28 

(b) Other Receivables 177.03 - 241.21 - 217.97 

Loans 321.72 9,096.58 398.66 10,864.33 392.50 11,988.32 

Other financial assets 98.45 9.69 126.70 10.96 138.27 9.90 

Non- financial Assets 

Current Tax Assets (Net) 34.10 25.66 58.20 

Deferred tax assets (Net) 64.99 - 

Investment Property 1,043.20 1,043.20 1,036.81 

Property, plant and equipment 96.38 #7 31.93 185.09 

Other intangible assets 137.40 - 171.75 . 206.10 

Other non-financial assets 25.86 23.66 15.44 

Total assets (a) 1,548.95 10,482.34 2,107.19 12,247.43 1,940.59 13,484.42 

Liabilities 

Financial liabilities 

Trade payable 10.64 6.92 2.82 

Borrowings (Other than Debt Securities) 5,730.00 : 7,760.00 . 8,930.00 

Other financial liabilities 686.97 997.52 1,036.84 

Non- financial liabilities 

Provisions 0.72 13.14 0.46 9.22 0.38 10.76 

Deferred tax liabilities (Net) - 16.40 - 16.26 

Other non-financial liabilities 99.32 - 59.54 - 67.94 - 

Total liabilities (b) 797.65 5,743.14 1,064.44 7,785.62 1,107.98 8,957.02 

Net (a-b) 751.30 4,739.20 1,042.75 4,461.81 832.61 4,527.40 
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32 Disclosure Pursuant To Reserve Bank Of India Circular No. Rbi/2019-20/170 Dor (Nbfc).Cc.Pd.No. 109/22. 10.106/2019-20 

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

2 in Lakhs 

Loss Allowances Provisions Difference 

Asset Gross Carrying (Provisions) as required as between Ind AS 

Asset Classification as per RBI Classification as Amount as per required under Net Carrying per IRACP 109 provisions & 

Norms per Ind AS 109 Ind AS Ind AS 109 Amount norms* IRACP norms 

(1) (2) (3) (4) (5)=(3)-(4) (6) (7) = (4)-(6) 
As at April 1, 2020 

A. Standard Stage 1 1 sot2d 31.19 11,328.10 31.19 

Stage 2 650.96 6.24 644.72 6.24 

Subtotal (A) 42,010.25 37.43 11,972.82 37.43 - 

B. Non Performing Assets (NPA) 

Substandard Stage 3 338.99 50.85 288.14 50.85 

Doubtful Stage 3 184.21 64.35 119.86 64.35 

Loss Stage 3 - - - - - 

Subtotal (B) 523.20 115.20 408.00 115.20 - 

Stage 1 11,359.29 31,19 11,328.10 31.19 

Total (A+B) Stage 2 650.96 6.24 644.72 6.24 

Stage 3 523.20 115.20 408.00 115.20 : 

Total 12,533.45 152.63 12,380.82 152.63 = 

As at March 31, 2021 

A. Geandard Stage 1 9,684.53 Dianne 9,652.28 S125 

Stage 2 1,318.51 3.92 1,314.59 3.92 

Subtotal (A) 411,003.04 36.17 10,966.87 36.17 - 

B. Non Performing Assets (NPA) 

Substandard Stage 3 226.31 33.95 192.36 33.95 

Doubtful Stage 3 150.48 46.72 103.76 46.72 

Loss Stage 3 - - - - - 

Subtotal (B) 376.79 80.67 296.12 80.67 - 

Stage 1 9,684.53 32.25 9,692.28 32.25 

Total (A+B) Stage 2 1,318.51 3.92 1,314.59 3.92 

Stage 3 3/0:79 80.67 296.12 80.67 - 

Total 11,379.83 116.84 11,262.99 116.84 - 

As at March 31, 2022 

A. Standard Stage 1 8,672.92 139.18 8,533.74 139.18 

Stage 2 679.42 20.08 659.34 20.08 - 

Subtotal (A) 9,352.34 159.26 9,193.08 159.26 - 

B. Non Performing Assets (NPA) 

Substandard Stage 3 114.13 17.11 97.02 17.11 - 

Doubtful Stage 3 187.88 59.68 128.20 59.68 - 

Loss Stage 3 - - - - 

Subtotal (B) 302.01 76.79 223.22 76.79 - 

Stage 1 8,672.92 139.18 8,533.74 139.18 

Total (A+B) Stage 2 679.42 20.08 659.34 20.08 

Stage 3 302.01 76.79 225.22 76.79 

Total 9,654.35 236.05 9,418.30 236.05 
  

*Including additional provision for Covid-19 March 31, 2022 ® 133.59 Lakhs (March 31, 2021 ® 6.25 Lakhs) 
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33 Related party disclosures 

a. List of Related Parties and Relationships 

i. Holding Company: 

Suraksha Realty Limited (upto 26 Mar 2021) 

Lakshdeep Investments & Finance Private Limited (from 26 Mar 2021) 

ii. Key Managerial Personnel (KMP) 

Mr. Sudhir Valia - Director 

Ms. Shradha Panchamia - Director 

Mr. Paras Mehta - Director (from 27 August 2021) 

Mr. Mahendra Mahajan - Director (upto 20 December 2021) 

Aims Consultants (Proprietress of the Aims Consultant is wife of Mr. Mahendra Mahajan) (upto 20 December 2021) 

iii. Fellow Subsidiaries 

Rampant Realty Private Limited 

Khyati Realtors Private Limited 

ALC India Private Limited 

Apnainsurance Services India Private Limited 

Apna Lifesecure Agency Private Limited 

Suraksha Landscape Private Limited 

ii Enterprises having significant influence (Associates of Holding Company) 

Fortune Integrated Assets Finance Limited 

b. Related Party Transactions 

= in Lakhs 
  

Nature of Transactions Name of Party 
Year ended 

31 March 2022 

Year ended 

31 March 2021 
  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

4. Inter Corporate Borrowings Suraksha Realty Limited 920.00 

taken Lakshdeep Investments & Finance Private Limited 7,650.00 

2. Inter Corporate Borrowings Suraksha Realty Limited : 2,090.00 

repaid Lakshdeep Investments & Finance Private Limited 1,920.00 

3. Interest on Inter Corporate Suraksha Realty Limited 901.99 

Borrowing Lakshdeep Investments & Finance Private Limited 523.34 

4. Consultancy fees Aims Consultants 36.00 

c. Balance at the end of year 

% in Lakhs 

Nature As at As at As at 

March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021 April 1, 2020 

1. Inter corporate borrowing Suraksha Realty Limited - 7,760.00 8,930.00 

Lakshdeep Investments & Finance 5,730.00 

Private Limited 

Suraksha Realty Limited 155.59 886.21 861.76 
Interest accrued but not due on - 

. . Lakshdeep Investments & Finance 471.00 
inter corporate borrowings . i. 

Private Limited 

c. Maximum Balance during the year 

a % in Lakhs 

4 Year ended Year ended 

Nature 31 March 2022 31 March 2021 
1. Inter corporate borrov Suraksha Realty Limited 9,775.00 

  

  

Lakshdeep Investments & Finance Private Limited 7,650.00 
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34 Diagrammatic representation of group structure 
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35 Fair value measurements 

(a) Financial instruments by category 

31, 2022 

  

  

  

  

  

2 in Lakhs 

Particulars Level As at As at As at 

March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021 April 1, 2020 

Financial assets 

Measured at amortised cost 

Cash and cash equivalent 1 76.54 237.52 127.13. 

Trade receivables Z 849.35 1,059.44 1,049.28 

Loans 2 9,418.30 11,262.99 12,380.82 

Other financial assets 2 108.14 137.66 148.17 

Total 10,452.33 12,717.61 13,705.40 

Financial liabilities 

Measured at amortised cost 

Trade payables 2 10.64 6.92 2.82 

Borrowings (Other than debt security) Z 5,730.00 7,760.00 8,930.00 

Other financial liabilities 2 686.97 997.32 1,036.84 

Total financial liabilities 6,427.61 8,764.44 9,969.66   

(b) Fair value hierarchy 

This section explains the judgements and estimates made in determining the fair values of the financial instruments that are (a) 

recognised and measured at fair value and (b) measured at amortised cost and for which fair values are disclosed in the financial 

statements. The Company has not disclosed the fair values of financial instruments such as trade receivables, trade payables, 

cash and cash equivalents, fixed deposits, security deposits, etc. as carrying value is reasonable approximation of the fair values. 

To provide an indication about the reliability of the inputs used in determining fair value, the Company has classified its financial 

instruments into the three levels prescribed under the Indian Accounting Standards. An explanation of each level is as below: 

Level 1 hierarchy includes financial instruments measured using quoted prices (unadjusted) in active market for identical assets 

that the entity can access at the measurement date. 

Level 2 hierarchy includes the fair value of financial instruments measured using quoted prices for identical or similar assets in 

markets that are not active. 

Level 3 If one or more of the significant inputs is not based on observable market data, the instrument is included in level 3. This 

is the case for unlisted compound instruments. 

There are no transfers between any of these levels during the year. The Company’s policy is to recognise transfers into and 

transfers out of fair value hierarchy levels as at the end of the reporting period. 

(c) Quantitative analysis of significant unobservable inputs 

Discount margin/spreads 

Discount margin/spreads represent the discount rates used when calculating the present value of future cash flows. In discounted 

cash flow models such spreads are added to the benchmark rate when discounting the future expected cash flows. Hence, these 

spreads reduce the net present value of an asset or increase the value of a liability. They generally reflect the premium an 

investor expects to achieve over the benchmark interest rate to compensate for the higher risk driven by the uncertainty of the 

cash flows caused by the credit quality of the asset. They can be implied from market prices and are usually unobservable for 

illiquid or complex instruments. 

Cash Flow 

Expected cash flow levels including timing of cash flows are estimated by using quantitaive and qualitative measures regarding 

the characteristics of the underlying assets including default rates, nature and value of collaterals, manner of resolution and 

other economic drivers. The timing of expected cash flows is influenced by the nature of collateral and the expected use of the 

same by the market participants. The manner of resolution is determined based on financial position and negotiations with the 

counterparty. 
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36 Capital Management 

The primary objective of the Company for its capital management is to ensure that it complies with externally imposed capital 

requirements and maintains strong credit ratings and healthy capital ratios in order to support its business and to maximise 

shareholder value. 

The Company manages its capital structure and makes adjustments to it according to changes in economic conditions and the risk 

characteristics of its activities. In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Company may adjust the amount of 

dividend payment to sharehold ers, return capital to shareholders or issue capital securities. No changes have been made to the 

objectives, policies and processes from the previous years. However, they are under constant review by the Board. 

Regulatory capital 

  

  

2 in Lakhs 

: ; : As at As at As at 

Cepital to: nisk assets ratio (CRAR) March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021 April 1, 2020 
Common Equity Tier 1 capital 5,288.11 5,332.81 5,153.91 

Other Tier 2 (General provision for standard assets) 25.66 30.13 37.56 

Total capital 5,313.77 5,362.94 5,191.47 

Risk weighted assets 7,171.35 8,110.92 8,940.02 

CRAR 74.10% 66.12% 58.07% 
  

Regulatory capital Tier | capital, which comprises share capital, special reserves, retained earnings including current year profit, 

reduced by Deferred tax assets and Intangible asset. Certain adjustments are made to Ind AS based results and reserves, as 

prescribed by the Reserve Bank of India. 
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37 Risk management 

37.1 Liquidity Risk 

Liquidity risk emanates from the mismatches existing on the balance sheet due to differences in maturity and repayment 

profile of assets and liabilities. These mismatches could either be forced in nature due to market conditions or created 

with an interest rate review. Such risk can lead to a possibility of unavailability of funds to meet upcoming obligations 

arising from liability maturities. To avoid such a scenario, the Company has ensured maintenance of a Liquidity Cushion in 

the form of open / running ICD from holding Company. It take care of immediate obligations while continuing to honour 

our commitments as a going concern. 

Analysis of financial assets and liabilities by remaining contractual maturities 

Maturity pattern of financial assets as at April 1, 2020 

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

2 in Lakhs 

Contractual maturities of assets and Less than 12 More than 12 

liabilities months months Total 

Financial Assets 

Cash and cash equivalent 127.13 127.13 

Trade receivables 1,049.28 1,049.28 

Loans 392.50 11,988.32 12,380.82 

Other financial assets 138.27 9.90 148.17 

Total (A) 1,707.18 11,998.22 13,705.40 

Financial liabilities 

Trade payables 2.82 = 2.82 

Borrowings (Other than debt security) - 8,930.00 8,930.00 

Other financial liabilities 1,036.84 - 1,036.84 

Total (B) 1,039.66 8,930.00 9,969.66 

Net (A-B) 667.52 3,068.22 3,735.74 

Maturity pattern of financial assets as at March 31, 2021 

= in Lakhs 

Contractual maturities of assets and Less than 12 More than 12 

liabilities months mantis Total 
Financial Assets 

Cash and cash equivalent 257.52 257.02 

Trade receivables 1,059.44 - 1,059.44 

Loans 398.66 10,864.33 11,262.99 

Other financial assets 126.70 10.96 137.66 

Total (A) 1,842.32 10,875.29 12,717.61 

Financial liabilities 

Trade payables 6.92 6.92 

Borrowings (Other than debt security) 7,760.00 7,760.00 

Other financial liabilities 997.52 : 997.52 

Total (B) 1,004.44 7,760.00 8,764.44 

Net (A-B) 837.88 3,115.29 3,953.17 
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37 Risk management (contd...) 

37.1 Liquidity Risk 

Maturity pattern of financial assets as at March 31, 2022 

  

  

  

  

  

2 in Lakhs 

Contractual maturities of assets and Less than 12 More than 12 

liabilities months months ital 
Financia! Assets 

Cash and cash equivalent 76.54 . 76.54 

Trade receivables 849.35 : 849.35 

Loans 321.72 9,096.58 9,418.30 

Other financial assets 98.45 9.69 108.14 

Total (A) 1,346.06 9,106.27 10,452.33 

Financial liabilities 

Trade payables 10.64 : 10.64 

Borrowings (Other than debt security) 7 5,730.00 5,730.00 

Other financial liabilities 686.97 , 686.97 

Total (B) 697.61 5,730.00 6,427.61 

Net (A-B) 648.45 3,376.27 4,024.72 
  

37.2 Interest rate risk 

Interest rate risk arises from the possibility that changes in interest rates will affect future cash flows or the fair values of 

financial instruments. The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonably possible change in interest rates 

(all other variables being constant) of the Company’s statement of profit and loss. The sensitivity of the statement of 

profit and loss is the effect of the assumed changes in interest rates on the profit or loss for a year.” 

Interest rate risk exposure 

The exposure of the Company's borrowing to interest rate changes at the end of the reporting period 

  

  

  

  

  

% in Lakhs 

Particulars As at As at As at 

March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021 April 1, 2020 

Variable rate borrowings . - - 

Fixed rate borrowings 5,730.00 7,760.00 8,930.00 

Total Borrowings 5,730.00 7,760.00 8,930.00 

Variable rate Loans 9,654.35 11,329.84 12,483.46 

Fixed rate Loans - 49.99 49.99 

Total Loans 9,654.35 11,379.83 12,533.45 

Net exposure (Variable borrowing- variable loans) (9,654.35) (11,379.83) (12,533.45) 
  

Cash flow sensitivity analysis for variable-rate instruments 

A reasonably possible change of 50 basis points in interest rates at the reporting date would have increased (decreased) 

profit or loss after tax by the amounts shown below. This analysis assumes that all other variables, remain constant. 

  

  

  

= in Lakhs 

Increase/(Decrease) in profit before 

Particulars tax for the year ended 

31 March 2022 31 March 2021 

Interest rate - Increased by 50 bps 36.12 42.58 

Interest rate - decreased by 50 bps (36.12) (42.58) 
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38 First time adoption of IND AS 

These financial statements, for the year ended 31 March 2022, are the first financial statements the Company 

has prepared in accordance with IND AS. For periods up to and including the year ended 31 March 2021, the 

Company prepared its financial statements in accordance with accounting standards notified under section 

133 of the Companies Act 2013, read together with paragraph 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 

(Indian GAAP or previous GAAP). 

Accordingly, the Company has prepared financial statements which comply with IND AS applicable for periods 

ending on 31 March 2022, together with the comparative period data as at and for the year ended 31 March 

2021, as described in the summary of significant accounting policies. In preparing these financial statements, 

the Company’s opening balance sheet was prepared as at 1 April 2020, the Company’s date of transition to 

IND AS. This note explains the principal adjustments made by the Company in restating its Indian GAAP 

financial statements, including the balance sheet as at 1 April 2020 and the financial statements as at and for 

the year ended 31 March 2021. 

Exemptions applied : 

IND AS 101 allows first-time adopters certain exemptions from the retrospective application of certain 

requirements under IND AS. The Company has applied the following exemptions: 

a) Deemed Cost for Property, Plant and Equipment and 

The Company has elected to continue with the carrying value of all of its property, plant and equipment and 

intangible assets recognised as of 1st April, 2020 (the transition date), measured as per the Previous GAAP and 

use that carrying value as its deemed cost as of the transition date under Ind AS. 

b) Classification and Measurement of 

The Company has classified the financial assets in accordance with Ind AS 109 on the basis of facts and 

circumstances that exist at the date of transition to Ind AS. 

Liabilities: 

As per Ind AS exemption, the Company has not fair valued the financial assets and liabilities retrospectively 

and has measured the same prospectively. 

The Company has opted to classify all financial assets and liabilities based on facts and circumstances existing 

on transition date. 

 



Fasttrack Housing Finance Limited 

Notes forming part of financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022 

38.1 Equity Reconciliation for April 1, 2020 

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

= in Lakhs 

Particulars Previous GAAP Ind AS adjustments INDAS converged 

1. ASSETS 

A. Financial assets 

Cash and cash equivalents 127.13 - 12:7..13 

Receivables 

(a) Trade Receivables 1,049.28 - 1,049.28 

(b) Other Receivables - 217.97 217.97 

Loans 12,533.45 (152.63) 12,380.82 

Other financial assets 371.74 (223.57) 148.17 

Total Financial Assets (A) 14,081.60 (158.23) 13,923.37 

B. Non-Financial assets 

Current Tax Assets (Net) 58.20 58.20 

Deferred tax assets (net) - 7 - 

Investment Property 1,036.81 1,036.81 

Property, plant and equipment 185.09 185.09 

Other intangible assets 206.10 206.10 

Other non-financial assets 9.84 5.60 15.44 

Total Non-Financial Assets (B) 1,496.04 5.60 1,501.64 

Total Assets (A+B) 15,577.64 (152.63) 15,425.01 

Il. LIABILITIES AND EQUITY 

LIABILITIES 

C. Financial Liabilities 

Trade Payables 2.82 2.82 

Borrowings 8,930.00 - 8,930.00 

Other financial liabilities 1,104.78 (67.94) 1,036.84 

Total Financial Liabilities (C) 10,037.60 (67.94) 9,969.66 

D. Non-Financial Liabilities 

Provisions 163.77 (152.63) 11.14 

Deferred tax liabilities (Net) 0.43 15.83 16.26 

Other non-financial liabilities 67.94 67.94 

Total Non-Financial Liabilities (D) 164.20 (68.86) 95.34 

E.EQUITY 

Equity Share Capital 62.62 . 62.62 

Other Equity 5,313.22 (15.83) 5,297.39 

Total Equity (E) 5,375.84 (15.83) 5,360.01 

  
Total Liabilities and Equity (C+D+E) 15,577.64 (152.63) 15,425.01 

 



Fasttrack Housing Finance Limited 

Notes forming part of financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022 

38.2 Equity Reconciliation for March 31, 2021 

% in Lakhs   

Particulars Previous GAAP Ind AS adjustments INDAS converged 

  
|. ASSETS 

A. Financial assets 

Cash and cash equivalents 

Receivables 

(a) Trade Receivables 

(b) Other Receivables 

Loans 

Other financial assets 

Total Financial Assets (A) 

B. Non-Financial assets 

Current Tax Assets (Net) 

Deferred tax assets (net) 

Investment Property 

Property, plant and equipment 

Other intangible assets 

Other non-financial assets 

Total Non-Financial Assets (B) 

Il. LIABILITIES AND EQUITY 

LIABILITIES 

C. Financial Liabilities 

Trade Payables 

Borrowings 

Total Assets (A+B) 

Other financial liabilities 

Total Financial Liabilities (C) 

D. Non-Financial Liabilities 

Provisions 

Deferred tax liabilities (Net) 

Other non-financial liabilities 

Total Non-Financial Liabilities (D) 

E.EQUITY 

Equity Share Capital 

Other Equity 

Total Equity (E) 

Total Liabilities and Equity (C+D+E) 

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

257.52 257.52 

1,059.44 ; 1,059.44 
241.21 241.21 

11,379.84 (116.85) 11,262.99 
391.84 (254.15) 137.66 

13,088.61 (129.79) 12,958.82 

25.66 25.66 

1,043.20 1,043.20 
131.53 131.53 
171.75 171.75 
10.72 12.94 23.66 

1,382.86 12.94 1,395.80 

14,471.47 (116.85) 14,354.62 

6.92 6.92 
7,760.00 7,760.00 
1,057.06 (59.54) 997.52 

8,823.98 (59.54) 8,764.44 

126.53 (116.85) 9.68 
7.78 8.62 16.40 

59.54 59.54 
134.31 (48.69) 85.62 

62.62 62.62 
5,450.56 (8.62) 5,441.94 

5,513.18 (8.62) 5,504.56 

14,471.47 (116.85) 14,354.62 
 



Fasttrack Housing Finance Limited 

Notes forming part of financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022 

38.3 Profit reconciliation for the year ended 31st March 2021 

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

% in Lakhs 

Particulars Previous GAAP __ Ind AS adjustments INDAS converged 

1. Revenue from Operations 

Interest Income 1,615.51 - 1,615.51 

Other financial services 22.61 - 22.61 

Other income 229.39 0.10 229.49 

Total Revenue from Operations (I) 1,867.51 0.10 1,867.61 

ll. Expenses 

Finance costs 903.07 - 903.07 

Impairment on financial instruments . - 7 

Employee benefit expense 275.84 6.93 282.77 

Depreciation and amortisation expense 87.91 - 87.91 

Other expenses 413.05 (1.74) 411.31 

Total expenses (Il) 1,679.87 5.19 1,685.06 

lll. Profit before Tax ( I-ll) 187.64 (5.09) 182.55 

IV. Tax expense 

Current tax 42.93 - 42.93 

Deferred tax 733 (8.49) (1.14) 

Total tax expense (IV) 50.28 (8.49) 41.79 

V. Net Profit After Tax (III-IV) 137.36 3.40 140.76 

Vl. Other comprehensive income 

Items that will not be reclassified to profit and loss 

Remeasurement gain/(loss) on of net defined benefit plans - 5.07 5.07 

Deferred tax on above - (1.28) (1.28) 

Other Comprehensive Income - 3.79 3.79 

Total comprehensive income for the year (V+VI) 137.36 7.19 144.55 

37.4 Profit reconciliation for the year ended 31st March 2021 

2 in Lakhs 

Particulars Year ended 
March 31, 2021 

Net Profit after tax as per Previous-GAAP 137.36 

Ind AS adjustmets 

Add : Remeasurement of employee benefit classified under OCI (5.09) 

Add : Change in deferred tax 8.49 

Net profit after tax as per IND AS 140.76 

VI. Other comprehensive income (net of tax) Toh a. 

Total Comprehensive income as per IND AS 144.55 

37.5 Equity reconciliation as on 

2 in Lakhs 

Particulars April 1, 2020 March 31, 2021 

Equity as per Previous-GAAP 5,313.22 5,450.56 

Add : Change in deferred tax (15.83) (8.62) 

Equity as per IND AS 5,297.39 5,441.94 
  

 



Fasttrack Housing Finance Limited 

Notes forming part of financial statements for the year ended Marcn 31, 2022 

39 Disclosure as per Notification no. NHB(ND)/DRS/REG/MC-07/2018 dated 2nd July, 2018 - “Housing Finance Companies - 

Pursuant to National Housing Bank ref. NHB(ND)/DRS/Policy Circular No 89/2017-18 dated June 14, 2018 , the Company has 

followed the extant provisions of National Housing Bank Act, 1987 and Housing Finance Companies (NHB) Directions 2010 

including framework on Prudential Norms, for the purpose of Disclosure requirement under Master circular Ref. 

NHB(ND)/DRS/REG/MC-07/2018 dated 2nd July, 2018 - “Housing Finance Companies - Corporate Governance (National Housing 

  

Bank) Directions, 2016”. 

40 Capital To Risk Asset Ratio (CRAR): 

  

  

  

  

in Lakhs 

Particulars Year ended Year ended 

31 March 2022 31 March 2021 

CRAR (%) 74.10% 66.12% 

CRAR - Tier | capital (%) 73.74% 65.75% 

CRAR - Tier Il Capital (%) 0.36% 0.37% 

Amount of subordinate debts raised as Tier- II capital 0.00% 0.00% 

Amount raised by issue of perpetual debt instrument 0.00% 0.00% 

41 Reserve Fund U/S 29C of NHB Act, 1987 

Statement of Disclosure on Statutory / Special Reserves, as prescribed by NHB vide its circular no NHB(ND)/DRS/Pol. 

Circular.61/2013-14, dated: 7th April, 2014 and NHB.HFC.CG-DIR.1/MD&CEO/2016 dated 9th February, 2017: 

in Lakhs 

Year ended Year ended 
Particulars 

31 March 2022 31 March 2021   
Balance at the beginning of the year: 

  

  

  

  

a) Statutory Reserve u/s 29C of the National Housing Bank Act, 1987 55.27 Peas 

b) Amount of special reserve u/s 36(1)(viii)of Income Tax Act, 1961 taken 12.75 

into account for the purpose of Statutory Reserve u/s 29C of the NHB Act, 

1987 

c) Total 68.02 55.27 

Addition / Appropriation / Withdrawal during the year 

Add: 

a) Amount transferred u/s 29C of the NHB Act, 1987 

b) Amount of special reserve u/s 36(1)(viii) of Income Tax Act, 1961 taken 53.18 12.75 

into account for the purposes of Statutory Reserve u/s 29C of the NHB Act, 

1987 

Less: 

a) Amount appropriated from the Statutory Reserve u/s 29C of the NHB Act, 

1987 

b) Amount Withdrawn from special reserve u/s 36(1)(viii) of Income Tax Act, 

1961 taken into account for the purposes of Statutory Reserve u/s 29C of the 

NHB Act, 1987 

Balance at the end of the year: 

a) Statutory Reserve u/s 29C of the National Housing Bank Act, 1987 55.27 55.27 

b) Amount of special reserve u/s 36(1)(viii) of Income Tax Act, 1961 taken 65.93 12.75 

into account for the purpose of Statutory Reserve u/s 29C of the NHB Act, 

1987 

c) Total 121.20 68.02 

42 Investments 

2 in Lakhs 

Particulars Year ended Year ended 

31 March 2022 31 March 2021   

  

  
_ (b) Outsidenth 

1,043.20 1,043.20 

  

  

   
¢ii)'Provision « 

L é 

-s, (a) In Indi 

Outs 
    

  

  

  

  

GileNetewattie of Investments 

(a) In India 

(b) Outside India 

1,043.20 1,043.20



Fasttrack Housing Finance Limited 

Notes forming part of financial statements for the year endea March 31, 2022 

42 Investments (Contd...) 

  

% in Lakhs 

particulars Year ended Year ended 

31 March 2022 31 March 2021 
  2. Movement of provisions held towards depreciation on investments 

(i) Opening balance 

(ii) Add: Provisions made during the year 

(ii) Less: Write-off / Written-bank of excess provisions during the year 

(ii) Closing balance 

43 Derivatives 

Company do not have any derivative activities, Disclosures on Risk Exposure in Derivatives are not applicable. 

43.1 Forward Rate Agreement (FRA) / Interest Rate Swap (IRS) 

  

  

  

  

2 in Lakhs 

Particulars Year ended Year ended 

31 March 2022 31 March 2021 

(i) The notional principal of swap agreements 

(ii) Losses which would be incurred if counterparties failed to fulfil their 

obligations under the agreements 

(iii) Collateral required by the HFC upon entering into swaps 

(iv) Concentration of credit risk arising from the swaps $ 

(v) The fair value of the swap book @ 

Note :Nature and terms of the swaps including information on credit and market 

risk and the accounting policies adopted for recording the swaps should also be 

disclosed. 

$ Examples of concentration could be exposures to particular industries or swaps 

with highly geared companies. . 

@ If the swaps are linked to specific assets, liabilities, or commitments, the fair 

value would be the estimated amount that the HFC would receive or pay to 

terminate the swap agreements as on the balance sheet date. 

43.2 Exchange Traded Interest Rate (IR) Derivative 

2 in Lakhs 

Particulars Year ended Year ended 

31 March 2022 31 March 2021 
  

(i) Notional principal amount of exchange traded IR derivatives undertaken during 

the year (instrument wise) 

(a) 
(b) 

(c) 
(ii) Notional principal amount of exchange traded IR derivatives outstanding as on 

(instrument-wise) 

(a) 

(b) 

(c) 
(iii) Notional principal amount of exchange traded IR derivatives outstanding and 

not "highly effective” (instrument wise) 

(a) 

(b) 

(c) 
(iv) Mark-to-market value of exchange traded IR derivatives outstanding and not 

“highly effective’ (instrument-wise) 

 



Fasttrack Housing Finance Limited 

Notes forming part of financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022 

43.3 Disclosures on Risk Exposure in Derivatives 

(A) Qualitative Disclosure 

As the Company is not dealing in derivatives this is not applicable. 

(B) Quantitative Disclosure 

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

2 in Lakhs 

Particulars Year ended Year ended 

31 March 2022 31 March 2021 

(i) Derivatives (Notional Principal Amount) - 

(ii) Marked to Market Positions [1] 

(a)Assets (+) 

(b)Liability (-) 

(iii) Credit Exposure [2] 

(iv) Unhedged Exposures 

44 Securitisation 

During the year company have not made any securitisation for asset reconstruction. 

Particulars No. / Amount 

1. No of SPVs sponsored by the HFC for securitization transactions* 

2. Total amount of securitised assets as per books of the SPVs sponsored 

3. Total amount of exposures retained by the HFC towards the MRR as on the date of balance sheet : 

(1) Off-balance sheet exposures towards Credit Enhancements 

a) 

b) 
(l1) On-balance sheet exposures towards Credit Enhancements 

a) 

b) 
4. Amount of exposures to securitisation transactions other than MRR : 

(1) Off-balance sheet exposures towards Credit Enhancements 

a) Exposure to own securitizations 

i) 
ii) 

b) Exposure to third party securitisations 

i) 
ii) 

(Il) On-balance sheet exposures towards Credit Enhancements 

a) Exposure to own securitizations 

i) 
ii) 

b) Exposure to third party securitisations 

i) 
ii) 

“Only the SPVs relating to outstanding securitisation transactions may be reported here 

45 Details of Financial Assets sold to Securitisation / Reconstruction Company for Asset Reconstruction 

in Lakhs 

Particulars Year ended Year ended 

31 March 2022 31 March 2021 
  

(i) No. of accounts 

(ii) Aggregate value (net of provisions) of accounts sold to SC / RC 

(ii) Aggregate consideration 

(iv) Additional consideration realized in respect of accounts transferred in earlier ) 

(v) Aggregate gain / loss over net book value 
  

 



Fasttrack Housing Finance Limited 

Notes forming part of financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022 

46 Details of Assignment transactions undertaken by HFCs 

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

= in Lakhs 

Particulars Year ended Year ended 
31 March 2022 31 March 2021 

{i) No. of accounts 

(ii) Aggregate value (net of provisions) of accounts assigned 

(iii) Aggregate consideration 

{iv) Additional consideration realized in respect of accounts transferred in earlier y 

{v) Aggregate gain / loss over net book value 

47 Details of non-performing financial assets purchased / sold 

A. Details of non-performing financial assets purchased: 

% in Lakhs 

Particulars Year ended Year ended 

31 March 2022 31 March 2021 

{i) No. of accounts purchased during the year 

(ii) Aggregate outstanding of (i) above 

(iii) No. of accounts restructured during the year - 

(iv) Aggregate outstanding of (iii) above 

B. Details of non-performing financial assets Sold 

in Lakhs 

Particulars Year ended Year ended 

31 March 2022 31 March 2021 
  

(i) No. of accounts sold 

(ii) Aggregate outstanding 

(iii) Aggregate consideration received 
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Notes forming part of financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022 

48 Exposure to Real Sectors 

Year ended 
48.1 Category 

31 March 2022 

A) Direct Exposure 

i) Residential Mortgages - 

Lending fully secured by mortgages on residential property that is or will be 

2% in Lakhs 

Year ended 

31 March 2021 

  

  

. : 9,654.35 ‘ 
occupied by the borrower or that is rented; , iiss 

ii) Commercial Real Estate - 

Lending secured by mortgages on commercial real estates (office buildings, 

retail space, multipurpose commercial premises, multi-family residential 

buildings, multi-tenanted commercial premises, industrial or warehouse space, 

hotels, land acquisition, development and construction, etc.). Exposure 

including non-fund based (NFB) limits; 

iii) Investments in Mortgage Backed Securities (MBS) and other securitised exposures - 

a) Residential 

b) Commercial Real Estate 

B) Indirect Exposure 

Fund based and non-fund based exposures on National Housing Bank (NHB) and - 

48.2 Exposure to group companies engaged in real estate business 

= in Lakhs 

Year ended Year ended 
Description 

31 March 2022 

Exposure to any single entity in a group engaged in real estate business 3 

Percentage of own fund 0.00% 

31 March 2021 

0.00% 
  

  

Exposure to all entities in a group engaged in real estate business - - 

Percentage of own fund 0.00% 0.00% 

49 Exposure to Capital Market 

2 in Lakhs 

Year ended Year ended 
  

Category 31 March 2022 

(i) direct investment in equity shares, convertible bonds, convertible debentures and 

(ii) advances against shares / bonds /debentures or other securities or on clean basis 

(iii) advances for any other purposes where shares or convertible bonds or convertible 

(iv) advances for any other purposes to the extent secured by the collateral security of - 

(v) secured and unsecured advances to stockbrokers and guarantees issued on behalf 

(vi) loans sanctioned to corporates against the security of shares / bonds / debentures 

(vii) bridge loans to companies against expected equity flows / issues; 

(viii) All exposures to Venture Capital Funds (both registered and unregistered) 

31 March 2021 

  

50 Details of Financing of Parent Company Products 

Company during the year has not entered into any transaction of financing of parent Company product. 

    

   
51 Details of Single Borrower Limit (SGL) Gro wer Limit (GBL) exceeded by the HFC 

Company during the year has not exceéded the-pr | 

  

3 

   
oe limits in case of single borrower limit and or group borrower
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52 

23 

54 

55 

56 

57 

58 

59 

Unsecured Advances 

Company does not have any outstanding unsecured loans as at 31 March 2022 

Registration obtained from Other Financial Sector Regulators 

Registeration with Legal Entity Identifier India Limited (LEIL) - LE] No. 3358000YWZWEIMQVBJ51 

Disclosure of penalties imposed by NHB and other Regulators 

Company was not imposed any penalty during the year by NHB or any other regulator. 

Rating details 

Company is enjoying CRISIL BBB/Negative rating for its long-term bank loan borrowing programme. 

Provisions and Contingencies 

Break up of ‘ Provisions and Contingencies’ shown under the head expenditure in profit and loss account 

Particulars 

Provisions for depreciation on Investment 

Year ended 

31 March 2022 

71.03 

2 in Lakhs 

Year ended 

31 March 2021 

42.93 

  

  

  

Provision made towards Income tax 

Other provision & contingencies - : 

Provision towards NPA 226.60 (34.61) 

Provision for Standard Assets 122.87 (1.18) 

Provisions on Loans 

% in Lakhs 

Housing Non Housing 

Category Year ended Year ended Year ended Year ended 

31 March 2022 31 March 2021 

Standard Assets 

31 March 2022 31 March 2021 

  

a) Total outstanding amount 8,260.32 9,781.17 1,092.02 1,221.88 

b) Provision made” 129.63 29.62 29.63 6.76 

Sub Standard Assets 

a) Total outstanding amount 112.57 163.06 1.56 63.25 

b) Provision made 16.88 24.46 0.23 9.49 

Doubtful Assets - 1 

a) Total outstanding amount 79.07 43.47 24.06 47.69 

b) Provision made 19.76 10.87 6.02 11.92 

Doubtful Assets - 2 

a) Total outstanding amount 43.41 49.40 41.34 9.91 

b) Provision made 17.37 19.76 16.53 3.96 

Doubtful Assets - 3 

a) Total outstanding amount - - 

b) Provision made - - 

Loss Assets 

a) Total outstanding amount 

b) Provision made 

Total 

a) Total outstanding amount 8,495.37 10,037.10 1,158.98 1,342.73 

b) Provision made 183.64 84.71 52.41 32.13 
  

*Including additional provision for Covid-19 March 31, 2022 = 133.59 Lakhs (March 31, 2021 = 6.25 Lakhs). 

Draw down from reserves 

During the year, the Company has not withdrawn any sum from its reserves. 

Foreign currency exposure and transaction 

a) Earnings and expenditures during the year is 3 Nil (P.Y. % Nil) 

b) Foreign Currency Exposure as at 31 March 2022 is INR & (P.Y. ® Nil) 
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60 

61 

62 

63 

64 

65 

  

       

    

  

Concentration of Public Deposits (for Public Deposit taking/ holding HFCs) 

% in Lakhs 
  

Particulars 
Year ended 

31 March 2022 

Year ended 

31 March 2021 
  

Total deposits of twenty largest depositors 

Percentage of deposits of twenty largest depositors to total deposits of the deposit 

taking HFC 

Concentration of loans & advances 

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

2 in Lakhs 

. Year ended Year ended 

Feat ACs 31 March 2022 34 March 2021 
Total Loans & Advances to twenty largest Borrowers 683.53 1258.11 

Percentage of Loans & Advances to twenty largest borrowers to total advances of the 7.08% 11.06% 

Concentration of all exposures (including off-balance sheet exposures) 

= in Lakhs 

. Year ended Year ended 

Particulags 31 March 2022 31 March 2021 
Total loans & advances to twenty largest borrowers 703.01 1258.11 

Percentage of loans & advances to twenty largest borrowers to total advances of the 7.28% 11.06% 

Concentration of NPAs 2 in Lakhs 

. Year ended Year ended 

Particulars 31 March 2022 31 March 2021 
Total Exposure to top ten NPA accounts 259.65 173.14 

Sector wise NPAs 

% of NPAs to Total Advances 

Sector in that sector 

A. Housing Loans 

1. Individuals 2.77% 

2. Builders/Project Loans = 

3. Corporates 

4. Others (specify) 

B. Non Housing Loans 

1. Individuals 5.78% 

2. Builders/Project Loans 

3. Corporates 

4. Others (specify) 

Movement of NPAs = in Lakhs 
  

Particulars 
Year ended 

31 March 2022 

Year ended 

31 March 2021 
  

(1) Net NPAs to Net Advances (in %) 

(II) Movement of NPAs (Gross) 

a) Opening balance 

b) Additions during the year 

c) Reductions during the year 

d) Closing balance 

a ). Movement in Net NPAs 

Opening balance 

Additions during the year 

) Reductions during the year 

i ) Closing balance 

Vv) Movement of provisions for NPAs (excluding provisions on standard assets) 

a) Opening balance 

b) Provisions made during the year 

c) Write-off/write-back of excess provisions 

d) Closing balance 

2.39% 

376.78 
116.79 
(191.56) 
302.01 

296.32 

138.32 

(209.42) 

225.22 

80.46 

21.52 

(25.19) 

76.79 

2.63% 

523.20 
168.69 
(315.11) 
376.78 

376.41 

144.88 

(224.97) 

296.32 

115.07 

35.78 

(70.39) 

80.46 
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66 

67 

68 

69 

70 

Overseas Assets 

Company does not have any overseas assets. 

Off-Balance Sheet SPVs sponsored (which are required to be consolidated as per accounting norms) 

Company has not sponsored any SPV. 

Details of Customers complaints 

% in Lakhs 
  

Year ended 
Particulars 31 March 2022 

Year ended 

31 March 2021 
  

No. of complaints pending at the beginning of the year 1 

  

  

No. of complaints received during the year 1 5 

No. of complaints redressed during the year 1 6 

No. of complaints pending at the end of the year 

Outstanding against the gold loan/Jewellery 

in Lakhs 

Year ended Year ended 
Particulars 31 March 2022 31 March 2021 
  

Outstanding Loans granted against the collateral gold jewellery 

% of above to total outstanding loans 
  

Disclosures pursuant to RBI Notification RBI/2020-21/16 DOR.No.BP.BC/3/21.04.048/2020-21 date August 6, 2020 and - 

RBI/2021-22/31 DOR.STR.REC. 11/21.04.048/2021-22 dated May 05, 2021 (Resolution Framework -2.0: Resolution of Covid-19 

related stress of Individuals and Small Businesses) 

= in Lakhs 
  

Exposure to accounts 

classified as Standard 

consequent to 

Type of borrower implementation of 

resolution plan - 

Of (A) amount 

written off during 

the half-year 

ended March 31, 

debt that slipped 

into NPA during 

the half-year 

ended March 31, 

paid by the 

the half-year 

ended March 31, 

Of (A), aggregate Of (A) amount 

borrowers during 

Exposure to 

accounts classified 

as Standard 

consequent to 

implementation 

of resolution plan 

  

  

= 5007 wr 2022 nuns 2022 - Position as at 
March 31, 2022 

Personal Loans 

Corporate persons 

Of which, MSMEs 

Others” * 1,440.18 22.45 - 81.81 1,335.92 

Total 1,440.18 22.45 7 81.81 1,335.92   

* Housing loan & LAP to individual. 

*Including loan restructer under Resolution Framework -1.0 = 62.52 Lakhs in FY 2020-21. 
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71 

72 

Assets Liability Management - maturity pattern of certain items of assets and liabilities 

  

  

  

    

2 in Lakhs 

As at 31 March 2022 Liabilities Assets 

: Market Foreign Foreign 
. . Borrowing : 

Period Deposits from Banks Borrowing Currency | Advances Investments Currency 

(ICD) Liabilities Assets 

1 day to 7 days - - = = 7205 = = 

8 to 14 days - - - - 11.77 - - 

15 days to 30/31 days - - - - 3.92 - - 

Over 1 month to 2 months - - - - 23.06 - - 

Over 2 months up to 3 months - 23.16 - 

Over 3 months to 6 months - 79.77 

Over 6 months to 1 year : - - - 172.19 - - 

Over 1 year to 3 years . - - - 816.98 - - 

Over 3 to 5 years 3 = 2 z 1,110.61 = = 

Over 5 years : - 5,730.00 : 7,405.04 - 

Total - - 5,730.00 - 9,654.35 - -       

Principal Business Criteria for HFCs 
“Housing finance Company” shall mean a Company incorporated under the Companies Act, 2013 that fulfils the following 

conditions: 

a) It is an NBFC whose financial assets, in the business of providing finance for housing, constitute at least 60% of its total assets 

(netted off by intangible assets). 

b) Out of the total assets (netted off by intangible assets), not less than 50% should be by way of housing financing for 

individuals. 

RBI vide its circular number RBI/2020-21/60/DOR.NBFC (HFC) CC.NO 118/03.10.136/2020-21 dated October 22,2020 defined the 

principal business criteria for HFCs. The Company has complied and its meeting the aforesaid principal business 

criteria for HFC. 

  

  

in Lakhs 

Particulars Year ended 31 March 2022 

Total assets 12,031.29 

Add : Impairement allowance 236.05 

Less : Intangible assets (137.40) 

Total assets (net of intangible assets) 12,129.94 

Financial assets 10,629.36 

Add : Impairement allowance 236.05 

Less : Cash & Bank balance (76.54) 

Financial assets (net of cash & bank balance) 10,788.87 

Income from Financial assets 1,464.71 

Total income 1,590.60 

Housing Finance for Individual 8,495.37 

Financial Assets (net of cash & bank balance) / Total Assets (net of Intangible Assets) 88.94% 

Income from Financial Assets / Gross Income 92.09% 

Housing Finance / Total Assets (net of Intangible Assets) 70.04% 

Housing Finance for Individual / Total Assets (net of Intangible Assets) 70.04% 
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(i) 

disclosure on liquidity risk 

Funding Concentration based on significant couterparty (both deposits and borrowings) 

  

    
(ii) 

(i) 

(iv) 

Number of Amount % of Total % of Total 

Signifcant (® Lakhs) deposit Liabilities 

Counterparties 

1 5,730.00 |Not Applicable 87.60%         
  

Top 20 large deposits (amount and % of total deposits) 

- Not Applicable 

Top 10 borrowings (amount and % of total borrowings) 

  

Amount (® Lakhs) % of Total Borrowings 
  

      5,730.00 100% 
  

Funding Concentration based on significant instrurment/ product 
  

  

  

Sr.No} Name of the instrument/product Amount % of Total 

(Rs. Lakhs) Liabilities 

1 {Inter Corporate deposit 5,730.00 87.60%         
  

(vi) 

Stock Ratios: 

Particulars 

Commercial papers as a % of total public funds, total liabilities and total assets - Nil 

Non-convertible debentures (original maturity of less than one year) as a % of total public funds, total 

liabilities and total assets - Nil 

Other short-term liabilities as a % of total public funds - NA 

Other short-term liabilities as a % of total liabilities- 12.19% 

Other short-term liabilities as a % of total assets - 6.63% 

Institutional set-up for liquidity risk management 

Board constituted Asset Liability committee (ALCO) reviews asset liability mismatches (ALM). It also 

ensures that there are no excessive concentration of either assets or liability side of the balance sheet. 

ALM is monitored as a regular process and necessary steps are taken wherever required. Company also 

maintains sufficient liquidity buffer through ICD from Holding Company and other means to meet its 

liability when they are due, under both normal and stressed conditions in a timely manner. Maturity 

profile of financial assets and financial liabilities is assessed along with borrowing and business and as a 

part of review of liquidity position. 

Liquidity risk is managed in accordance with ALM policy. Same is reviewed periodically to incorporate 

regulatory changes, economic scenario and business requirements. 
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Schedule to the Balance Sheet of an HFC 

Zin Lakhs   
Particulars   

Liabilities side Amount outstanding Amount overdue   

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

      
  

  

  

        

  

  

  

  

(1) |Loans and advances availed by the HFC inclusive of interest 

accrued thereon but not paid: 

(a) |Debentures : Secured 

: Unsecured 

(other than falling within the meaning of public 

(b) |Deferred Credits - 

(c) {Term Loans - 

(d) |Inter-corporate loans and borrowing 5,730.00 

(e) |Commercial Paper 

(f) — |Public Deposits* 

(g) Other Loans (specify nature) 

* Please see Note 1 below 

(2) |Break-up of (1)(f) above (Outstanding public deposits 

inclusive of interest accrued thereon but not paid): 

(a) {In the form of Unsecured debentures 

(b) |In the form of partly secured debentures i.e. debentures 

where there is a shortfall in the value of security 

(c) |Other public deposits 

Assets side Amount outstanding 

(3) |Break-up of Loans and Advances including bills receivables 

[other than those included in (4) below]: 

(a) |Secured 9,654.35 

(b) |Unsecured (ICD) 

(4) |Break up of Leased Assets and stock on hire and other assets 

counting towards asset financing activities 

  
(7) Lease assets including lease rentals under sundry debtors 

  
(a) |Financial lease   
(b) |Operating lease   

(ii) Stock on hire including hire charges under sundry debtors 

  
(a) Assets on hire   
(b) |Repossessed Assets     (iii) Other loans counting towards asset financing activities 

  
(a) |Loans where assets have been repossessed 

      (b) |Loans other than (a) above         
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Schedule to the Balance Sheet of an HFC 

Xin Lakhs   
Particulars 
  

Assets side Amount outstanding 
  
(5 SS

 Break-up of Investments   
Current Investments 
  

1. Quoted   
(i) Shares   

(a) Equity   
(b) Preference   

  (ii) |Debentures and Bonds 

ii) |Units of mutual funds   
(iv) |Government Securities   
(v) |Others (please specify)   

  
(i) Shares   

(a) Equity   
(b) Preference   

(ii) |Debentures and Bonds   
(iii) {Units of mutual funds   
(iv) |Government Securities   
(v) Others (please specify)   

Long Term investments 
  

1. Quoted   
(i) Share   

(a) Equity   
(b) Preference   

(ii) |Debentures and Bonds   
(ii) |Units of mutual funds   
(iv) |Government Securities   
(v) | |Others (please specify)   

2. Unquoted   
(i) Shares   

(a) Equity   
(b) Preference   

(ii) {Debentures and Bonds   
(iii) jUnits of mutual funds     (iv) |Government Securities 
          (v) Others (please specify) 
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74 Annex Il 

Schedule to the Balance Sheet of an HFC 

% in Lakhs 

Particulars 

(6) |Borrower group-wise classification of assets financed as in (3) and (4) above 

Category Amount net of provisions 

Secured Unsecured Total 

1, Related Parties ** 

(a) |Subsidiaries 

{b) |Companies in the same group 

(c) jOther related parties : - 

2. |Other than related parties 9,654.35 : 9,654.35 

Total 9,654.35 : 9,654.35 

(7) |Investor group-wise classification of all investments (current and long term) in shares and securities 

(both quoted and unquoted) : 

  

Market Value / Break |Book Value (Net of 

Category up or fair value or |Provisions) 

NAV 
  

1. Related Parties ** 

(a) |Subsidiaries 
  

  

(b) |Companies in the same group 
  

  (c) |Other related parties 
    de Other than related parties 

Total 

** As per applicable Accounting Standard (Please see Note 3) 

    
  

  

  
(8) |Other information 
  

Particulars Amount 
  

(i) Gross Non-Performing Assets 

(a) |Related parties 
  

  

(b) |Other than related parties 302.04 

(ii) | |Net Non-Performing Assets 
  

  

(a) {Related parties 
  

(b) {Other than related parties 225.22 

(iii) [Assets acquired in satisfaction of debt 
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15. = 

75.2 

Expected Credit Loss 

Expected Credit toss is a calculation of the present value of the amount expected to be lost on a financial asset, for financial reporting purposes. 

Credit msk is the potential that the obligor and counterparty will fail to meet its financial obligations to the lender. This requires an effective 

assessment and management of the credit risk at portfolio level. 

The key components of Credit Risk assessment are: 

1. Probability of Default (PD): represents the likelihood of default over a defined time horizon. 

2. Exposure at Default (EAD): represents how much the obligor is likely to be borrowing at the time of default. 

3. Loss Given Default (LGD): represents the proportion of EAD that is likely to be lost post-default. 

The definition of default is taken as 90 days past due for all retail and corporate loans. 

Delinquency buckets have been considered as the basis for the staging of all loans in the following manner: 

0-30 days past due loans classified as stage 1 

More than 30 - 90 days past due loans classified as stage 2 and 

Above 90 days past due loans classified as stage 3 

EAD is the total amount outstanding including accrued interest as on the reporting date. 

The ECL is computed as a product of PD, LGD and EAD. 

Credit quality of assets 

  

  

  
  

= in Lakhs 

. Year ended 31 March 2022 Year ended 31 March 2021 

Particulars Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total 

Loans 8,672.92 679.42 302.01 9,654.35 9,684.53 1,316.51 376.79 | 11379.83                     

An analysis of changes in the gross carrying amount and the corresponding ECL allowances in relation to lending is, as follows: 

Reconciliation of the gross carrying amount: 

  

  

  

                

  

  
  
  

    

2 in Lakhs 

Particulars Year ended 31 March 2022 Year ended 31 March 2021 

Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total 

Gross carrying amount opening 9,684.53 | 1,318.51 376.79 11,379.83 11,359.29 650.96 523.20 12,533.45 

New assets originated 920.98 920.98 363.52 363.52 

Assets derecognised or repaid 

(excluding write offs) (2,458.88) (86.71) (41.56)}  (2,587.15)} (1,170.16) (77.84) (30.16) (1,278.16) 

Transfers to Stage 1 892.06 (844.75) (47.31) 7 193.60 (159.50)} (34.10) - 

Transfers to Stage 2 (328.07) 371.46 (43.39) - (943.56) 997.12 (53.56) 

Transfers to Stage 3 (37.70) (79.09) 116.79 - (86.54) (83.90)}| 170.44 - 

Amounts written off (59.31) (59.31) (31.62) (8.33)| (199.03) (238.98) 

Gross carrying amount closing 8,672.92 679.42 302.01 9,654.35 9,684.53 1,318.51 376.79 11,379.83 

Reconciliation of ECL balance is given below: 

2% in Lakhs 

. Year ended 31 March 2022 Year ended 31 March 2021 
Particulars 

Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total 

ECL allowance - opening 32.25 3.92 80.67 116.84 31.19 6.24 115.20 152.63 

New assets originated or purchased 2.44 2.44 0.94 0.94 

Assets derecognised or repaid or 

additional provision made 53.46 88.38 (1.35) 140.49 15.33 8.21 (11.24) 12.30 

Transfers to Stage 1 63.88 (63.70) (0.18) = 0.64 (0.54) (0.10) . 

Transfers to Stage 2 (7.19) 7.34 (0.15) - (2.78) 2.95 (0.17) 

Transfers to Stage 3 (5.66) (15.86) 21.52 - (12.98) (12.59) 25.57 : 

Assets written off (23.72) (23.72) (0.09) (0.35) (48.59) (49.03) 

ECL allowance - closing* 139.18 20.08 16.49 236.05 32.25 3.92 80.67 116.84                     

*Includes additional provision for Covid-19 March 31, 2022 = 133.59 Lakhs (March 31, 2021 = 6.25 Lakhs) 
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a) 

b) 

c) 

qd) 

e) 

8) 

Contingent liabilities & Commitments 

A. Contingent liabilities 

Contingent liabilities as on 31 March 2022 : Nil (31 March 2021:Nil) 

B. Capital commitments 

Estimated amount of contract remaining to be executed on capital account is Nil (31 March 2021 : Nil) 

C. Other commitments 

Loan commitment in respect of partly disbursed loans is = 215.86 lakhs (31st March 2021 : = 365.52 lakhs) 

Segment information 

The Company operates only in one Operating Segment i.e Housing Finance business - Financial Services and all other 

activities are incidental to the main business activity, hence have only one reportable Segment as per Indian 

Accounting Standard 108 “Operating Segments”. 

Other Additional Regulatory Information 

Title deeds of Immovable Properties not held in name of the Company 

All the immovable properties own by the Company is in it's own name. 

Details of Benami Property held 

The Company do not have any benami property, where any proceeding has been initiated or pending against the 

company for holding any Benami property. 

Security of current assets against borrowings 

The Company has no borrowings from banks or financial institutions on the basis of security of current assets. 

Wilful Defaulter 

The Company is not declared as wilful defaulter by any bank or financial Institution or other lender. 

Relationship with Struck off Companies 

The Company do not have any transactions with companies struck off. 

  

  

Registration of charges or satisfaction of charges with Registrar of Companies (ROC) 

The Company do not have any charges or satisfaction which is yet to be registered with ROC beyond the statutory 

period. 

Ratios 

. Year ended Year ended 
Particulars 

March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021 

Liquidity coverage ratio 1.29 7.18 

Debt equity ratio Tadd 2,05 

CRAR 74.10% 66.12% 
  

Lquidity Coverage Ratio = (High Quality Liquid Assets/ Short-term obligations for next 30 days) 

Debt-equity Ratio = (Debt securities + Borrowings (other than debt securities)+ subordinate liabilities) / Net Worth 

CRAR = Total Capital / Risk Weighted assets 
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j) 

The Company does not have any such transaction which is not recorded in the books of accounts that has been 

surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (such as, 

search or survey or any other relevant provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961). 

Utilisation of Borrowed funds 

The company has neither advanced, loaned or invested funds nor received any fund to/from any person or entity for 

lending or investing or providing guarantee to/on behalf of the ultimate beneficiary during the reporting periods. 

Details of Crypto Currency or Virtual Currency 

The Company has not traded or invested in Crypto currency or Virtual Currency during the current financial year and 

any of the previous financial years. 

Due to COVID-19, business places of the Company were shut down on 23rd March 2020 only to restart at considerably 

lower productivity after lifting of lockdown. It has impacted normal business operations and volumes of the 

Company. Necessary precautions to ensure hygiene, safety, and wellbeing of all our employees at all offices have 

been implemented. The Company has considered the possible effects COVID-19 may have on the recoverability and 

carrying value of its assets. 

Based on current indicators of future economic conditions, the Company expects to recover the carrying amount of 

these assets. The situation is changing rapidly giving rise to inherent uncertainty around the extent and timing of the 

potential future impact of the COVID-19 which may be different from that estimated as at the date of approval of 

these results. The Company will continue to closely monitor any material changes arising of future economic 

conditions and impact on its business. The Company holds an impairment provision of = 133.59 Lakhs as at March 31, 

2022 (March 31, 2021 : = 6.25 Lakhs) on account of COVID-19 and loans on which One Time Restructuring was 

implemented. 

Previous year figures have been regrouped and reclassified wherever necessary. 
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